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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON DRUG ABUSE
EDUCATION PROGRAMS

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 1990

Housz OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ELEMENTARY, SECONDARY,

AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,

Va ncou ver, WA.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 a.m., in the

Council Chambers, Vancouver City Hall, 210 East 13th Street, Van-
couver, Washington, Hon. Jolene Unsoeld presiding.

Members present. Representatives Unsoeld and Kildee.
MS. UNSOELD. Good morning. I call to order this official hearing

of the Subcommittee on Elementary, Secondary, and Vocational
Education of the Education and Labor Committee on the Drug
Abuse Resistance Education Program, better known as DARE.

I would like to welcome everyone and introduce my colleague
from the Education and Labor CommitteeHuman Resources Sub-
committee Chairman, Dale Kildee from Michiganwho himself
was an educator in his former life. I think he calls it his real life.
Congressman Kildee has been dedicated to furthering the cause of
education during his tenure in Congress, both on the Education
Committee and the Budget Committee. He has been an inspiration
and a mentor to me not only in our committee but also in Con-
gress. I appreciate his willingness to travel to the "real Washing-
ton" to preside over this hearing with me. And, I believe I speak
for both of us when I say we are looking forward to hearing the
testimony and learning more about DARE and the positive effect it
is having on our youth.

Part of what you all are doing today is to help us build that mo-
mentum, establish the record, so that we can go back to Congress
to give that extra push to promote this very worthwhile program.

And I want to thank all of the witnesses who are here today. We
appreciate you taking the time to share your experiences with the
DARE program with us today.

As our nation's drug woes have worsened, Congress has been ex-
amining what is successful strategy and what is not to deal with
these problems. We are holding the hearing to gain additional in-
sight from those of you who have worked most closely with the suc-
cessful DARE program.

I do not have to tell anyone here about the effect the scourge of
drugs is having on our future generation of, leaders. If our young

(I)
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people are to succeed, we must eliminate drug and alcohol abuse.
President Bush has called for drug-free schools by the year 2000.

Yet despite signs that drug use is declining among our .nation's
youth, narcotics abuse still continues in disturbing proportions and
brings untold misery. More than half of Washington's sixth graders
have consumed alcohol. One in six tenth graders drink every day.
Half of the teen offenders commit their crimes while high or
drunk. It is estimated by the Governor's Council on Substance
Abuse that 80,000 children under the age of 18 have a substance
abuse problem. And thousands more are on their way. As many as
one in twenty births are to cocaine usersthe so-called crack
babies. Moreover, according to state law enforcement officials, the
majority of serious crimes in the state can be traced to drugs.

VVe in Congress are actively trying to do our part to combat these
problems. We hope to work in partnership with local schools, com-
munities and local law enforcement agencies in a national effort to
fight the War on Drugs. In a nation that is desperately seeking so-
lutions to our drug problems, I believe DARE stands out as a
proven weapon.

Over a year ago, Lewis County Sheriff, Bill Logan, pulled me
aside after a town hall meeting and clued me in to the DARE pro-
gram because it was proving its worth in southwest Washington.
He told me they had tried scaring the kids; they had tried locking
them up, but none of it had really worked. He also said that the
DARE program was the first that had come along that had a
chance of drying up the demand for drugs. This is because DARE
uproots drug abuse at its source, when the problem is still small
and the potential user still young.

Since then I have investigated the DARE program, attended
DARE graduations for both law enforcement officers and students,
and met with schools and those officers. I have become convinced
that DARE is one of our most effective drug prevention strategies.
Therefore I introduced legislation to provide funding for DARE
programs.

Last year, with the cooperation of my colleagues, I was able to
pass legislation that made DARE programs eligible for Federal
funding. This year I have introduced legislation that targets $15
million of the Drug Free Schools fund for DARE. It passed the
House of Representatives this summer, and I am now working for
Senate approval, without them turning the bill into a Christmas
tree with a lot of other ornaments on it. We want it to go through
cleanly.

Since the Federal Government is spending nearly $9 billion on
the War on Drugs in 1990 alone, and another half a billion dollars
in the Drug Free Schools and Communities Act, I believe we must
spend our resources wisely by targeting the successful programs
like DARE. Once a drug problem has developed, it is difficult and
expensive to treat. Experts agree the best approach is prevention.

DARE goes beyond the traditional anti-drug education programs.
It uniquely brings people together: parents, students, teachers, law
enforcement officers and the community in a cooperative education
effort to help kids recognize the pressures that can lead to drug
and alcohol abuse, as well as ways to deal with those pressures. It
not only teaches kids why to say "no," but also how to say "no."

t;
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Furthermore, by bringing t!..ose patrol-hardened, credible law en-
forcement officers into the schools to shore up the teacher's anti-
drug instruction, we have an extra strong program. Our teachers
have one of the toughest and most important jobs in society. They
need our support, and veteran DARE officers provide added sophis-
tication and experience.

DARE officers are also gifted teachers. I believe it is that unique
aspect that makes the program so successful. It builds positive,
trusting relationships between students and officers. It opens com-
munication channels that were sometimes non-existent. The rap-
port that develops leads to a greater respect on behalf of the stu-
dents, for the law, which will be carried forward in their lives.
DARE officers are a very positive influence on our young people
and on our communities.

Offering a DARE program, however, takes the commitment of an
entire community. It takes an abundance of time, energy, and re-
sources to implement. Funding for DARE programs currently
comes from state and local resources, as well as donations from
parents, schools and local businesses. Cost to replace a single offi-
cer on patrol can reach $36,000 in the state of Washington. Many
urban and rural communities today want DARE in their schools,
but they must forego the program because they lack the funding. I
believe a Federal commitment would help communities who want
DARE but cannot afford it. That is why you all are here today to
help us give that push.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Jolene Unsoeld follows:]
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STATEMENT
REPRESENTATIVE JOLENE UNSOELD

EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE HEARING
DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION (D.A.R.E.)

SEPTEMBER 6, 1990

Good morning. I hereby call to order an official hearing of the
Elementary and Secondary Subcommittee of the Education and Labor
Committee on the Drug Abuse Resistance Education program known as DARE.

I would like to welcome everyone and introduce my colleague from the
Education and Labor Committee -- Human Resources Subcommittee
Chairman, Dale Kildee from Mic -- who himself was an educator in his
former life. Congressman Kildee hits been dedicated to furthering the cause
of education during his tenure in Congress, both on the Education Committee
and the Budget Committee. He has been an inspiration and a mentor to me
not only in our committee but in Congress. I appreciate his willingness to
travel to the "real Washington" to preside over this hearing. I believe I

speak for both of us when I say we are looking forward to hearing the
testimony and learning more about DARE and the positive effect it is having
on our youth.

I would also like to welcome the witnesses. We appreciate each of you
taking the time to share your experiences with the DARE program with us
today.

As our nation's drug woos have worsened, Congress has been examining
successful strategies to deal with these problems. We are holding this
hearing to gain additional insight from those of you who have worked
closely with the successful DARE program.

I don't have to tell anyone here about the effect the scourge of drugs is
having on our future generation of leaders. If our young people are to
succeed, we must eliminate drug and alcohol abuse. President Bush has
called for drug-free schools by the year 2000.

Yet despite signs that drug use is declining among our nation's youth,
narcotics abuse still continues in disturbing proportions and brings untold
misery. More than half of Washington's sixth graders have consumed
alcohol. One in six tenth graders drink every day. Half of teen offenders
commit their crimes high or drunk. It is estimated by the Governor's
Council on Substance Abuse that 80,000 children under the ago of 18 have a
substance abuse problem. And thousands more are on their way. As many as
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one in twenty births are to cocaine users - the so called crack babies.
Moreover, according to state law enforcement officials, the majority of
serious crimes in the state can be traced to drugs.

We In Congress are actively trying to do our part to combat these
problems. We hope to work in partnership with local schools, communities
and law enforcement agencies in a national effort to fight the War on Drugs.
In a nation that Is desperately seeking solutions to our drug problems, I

believe DARE stands out as a proven weapon.

Over a year ago, Lewis County Sheriff, Bill Logan, pulled me aside after
a town meeting and clued me in to the DARE program because it was proving
its worth in southwest Washington. He told me they tried scaring kids; they
tried locking them up; but none of it had worked. He told me that DARE was
the first program that had come along that had a chance of drying up the
demand for drugs. DARE uproots drug abuse at its source, when the problem
is still small, and the potential user still young.

Since then I have investigated the DARE program, attended DARE
graduations for both officers and students, and met with schools and law
enforcement officers. I became convinced that DARE was an effective drug
prevention strategy so I introduced legislation to provide funding for DARE
programs.

Last year I was able to pass legislation that made DARE programs
eligible for federal funding. This year I introduced legislation that targets
$15 million of the Drug Free Schools fund for DARE. It passed the House of
Representatives this summer and I am now working for Senate approval.

As the federal government spends nearly $9 billion dollars on the War
on Drugs in 1990 alone, and another half a billion in Drug Free Schools and
Communities Act money, I believe we must spend our resources wisely by
targeting successful programs like DARE. Once a drug problem has
developed, it is difficult and expensive to treat. Experts agree the best
approach is prevention.

DARE goes beyond the traditional anti-drug education programs. It
uniquely brings people together, parents, students, teachers, and law
enforcement officers in a cooperative education effort to help kids
recognize the pressures that can lead to drug and alcohol abuse and ways to
deal with these pressures. It not only teaches kids why to say "no", but
HOW to say "no."
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DARE brings patrol-hardened, credible law enforcement officers into
the schools to shore up the teacher's anti-drug instruction. Our teachers
have one of the toughest and most important jobs in society. They need our
support and veteran DARE officers provide the added sophistication and
experience.

DARE officers are also gifted teachers. I believe it is this unique
aspect that makes the program so successful. It builds positive, trusting
relationships between students and officers. It opens communication
channels that were sometimes non-existent. The rapport that develops
leads to a greater respect for the law. DARE officers are having a positive
influence on our young people and our communities..

Offering a DARE program, however, takes the commitment of an entire
community. It takes an abundance of time, energy, and resources to
implement a DARE program. Funding for DARE programs currently comes
from state and local resources,and donations from parents, schools and
local businesses. Cost to replace a single officer on patrol can reach
$36,000 in the state of Washington. Many urban and rural communities
today want DARE in their schools, but must forego the program because they
lack funding. I believe a federal commitment would help communities who
want DARE but cannot afford it.

Mr. Chairman? Would you like to give some opening remarks?

CLOSING REMARKS

Once again, I wish to thank the witnesses for their excellent
presentations. I believe your testimony will help us secure more funding
for the DARE program. We have an obligation to our youth to get programs
that are working into our schools and communities. DARE is a tough, long
term strategy that may positively affect our kids for the rest of their lives.
DARE makes a difference and we simply cannot afford to lose the Ware on
Drugs.

When sheriffs, police chiefs, teachers, parents, and students all say
this is a program that works, we in Congress should not only listen, we
should act. I hope to continue to gain support for DARE. Thank you all for
your dedication to Washington's youth and this important prevention
program. And thank you for coming today to share your experiences.
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MS. UNSOELD. Mr. Chairman? Would you like to add a few open-
ing remarks?

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Madame Chairman. It is a pleasure to be
here in Washington to hear testimony on one of the most devastat-
ing problems we have in our country: drug abuse, and particularly,
drug abuse by our children.

As a father of three college age children, I count my blessings
that so far those children have successfully emerged through those
years. But, I look around, and sometimes wonder how they made it,
with all the temptations present in our society.

The problem is very complex, and the answers are not easy. I am
convinced that the role of the police department working with the
school is a very, very important role. I am from Flint, Michigan,
and when I was still teaching Latin in high school back there, Flint
established a police counselor program, where they put a full time
police officer in certain schools. And I, at the time, wondered a bit
whether that was good. But after just a few months I knew it was
good, because that relationship between the police officerand
these were really solid police officers with great experiencework-
ing with the teachers and working with the students, really trans-
formed not only individuals, but whole neighborhoods. So I am con-
vinced that this is a good approach.

Congresswoman Unsoeld is Ms. DARE in Washington. She has
educated us. I do not recall a meeting in which she has not men-
tioned DARE and what a great program this is. It is for that
reason that she wanted to have a hearing out here so she could
educate more of the Congress. So, I will go back and I will be her
teacher's aide, trying to educate the Congress.

We have done well. You were very persistent. Persistence is a
virtue in the Congress. You have to really stay at it because there
are so many demands for our money down there. You really have
to believe in a program, and be able to sell that program. Congress-
woman Unsoeld has done that.

We will go back now and try to convince the Senate that the
billCongresswoman Unsoeld's bill that passed the Houseis a
good bill just as it is, and as you say, not to have the Senate hang a
lot of ornaments on it.

I commend the police officers here. You have a special knowledge
of this problem; you see it from so many different points of view. I
am anxious to assist you in solving this problem because what is at
stake is the very future of our country. I am Chairman, as Con-
gresswoman Unsoeld pointed out, of the Human Resources Sub-
committee, and I have youth programs under my subcommittee. As
you see, these programs have some problems. I was mentioning to
one of the officers that one of the programs under my jurisdiction
is a Runaway Youth Act. Now, I come from a very stable family.
My mother is 90 years old. When I go home to Flint, I still stay at
her house. We go to Mass together. And, I have always had that
stability. My own children, I think, have had that stability.

But you look around and you find that very often that stability is
not there. I have seen families so damaged that one time, halfway
through a hearing, I began to realizeand I hate to say this be-
cause it sounds so unusualthat that young man or that young
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woman, that boy or girl who ran away from home, was doing that
as a defensive action.

So I think that as you approach the DARE program, you reach
the child and somehow try to reach his or her family, too, because
the family is the basic unit of society.

What I have seen just talking to the officers I here today, as we
have discussed the family, is that you recognize the role of that
child in the family. Whatever you have done, you have done well.
Because, the few officers picked to serve in this program that are
here today obviously do recognize that that child is part of a
family. And, somehow that must have permeated through the pro-
gram because you have had a high rate of success.

Finally, I commend you for it, and I want to go back to Washing-
ton an:a lsiseelx Congresswoman Unsoeld get her bill which has al-
ready in the House, passed in the Senate. Thank you very
much.

Ms. UNEIOELD. Thank you. You can see why Congressman Kildee
is a great favorite. As he conducts his subcommittee, he is able to
lift the intellectual arguments off the page and fix them within our
emotions. And that is often the best place to push these good pro-
grams.

For those of you who are participating, I want to tell you that
this is being broadcast live and will be recorded and rebroadcast, so
that you have that warning.

Our first witness is Commander Walter Mitchell, from the Los
Angeles Police Department. DARE originally began in 1983 in Los
Angeles, and Commander Mitchell was at that beginning, at that
birthing. We are very much looking forward to hearing you.
Thanks to his efforts, DARE has now spread to 49 states and sever-
al foreign countries.

Commander Mitchell.

STATEMENT OF COMMANDER WALTER MITCHELL, LOS ANGELES
POLICE DEPARTMENT, REPRESENTING DARE AMERICA

Commander MITCHELL. Good morning. Thank you. First of all I
want to thank the committee for the opportunity to speak here this
morning, but I also want to thank the DARE officials and the
DARE officers from Washington State. I do not know if everybody
in the room knows, but Washington State has one of the more solid
DARE programs in the United States, and I just wanted to point
that out. They have one of the great programs.

Congresswoman Unsoeld said we are in 49 states. Happily, next
week, we start in the 50th state. The state of Delaware has finally
come on board, thanks to the efforts of a lot of people back there,
including Senator Joe Biden.

There is no question that the magnitude of drug abuse and gang
violence in our society is high and spills over to the schools, espe-
cially with the increase in the use of crack cocaine in the last few
years.

The statistics relating to drug use on U.S. school campuses are
shocking. According to the September 1989 National Drug Control
Strategy published by the White House, "Half of all teens in a
recent survey said that drugs were being used in their schools, and

0
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four in ten said that they were being sold there," To successfully
combat the social problem of drug abuse, we must mobilize our
schools and law enforcement agencies and entire communities
must focus their resources on this problem.

Drug abuse is everyone's problem. Drug abuse reduces effective
learning in schools. Recent National Institute on Drug Abuse sta-
tistics reveal that 54 percent of graduating students have used
marijuana, some as young as nine years of age.

Nationally, 26 percent of the workers are under the influence
while on the job, and 20 to 40 percent of all heavy cocaine users
have to steal to become drug dealers to support their habit. The
Surgeon General states that thousands of people die annually in
the U.S. from heroin and cocaine overdoses. The most innocent vic-
tims are babies born to cocaine-addicted mothers, the so-called
crack babies. The babies are usually underweight and sometimes
are mentally or physically deformed and addicted to drugs for life.

Drugs are big business. Regardless of time, money and manpower
being devoted to attack narcotic trafficking as a police problem,
this dirty business is thriving. It is thriving simply because it is a
matter of economics. It is a matter of supply and demand. As long
as there is a demand for illegal drugs, then there are going to be
hustlers out there that are willing to supply it. It is estimated that
we have 23 million drug abusers in this country. With that big of a
market, unless we reduce that market, we are not going to solve
the drug problem.

Law enforcement executives throughout the United States and
around the world recognize that prevention is the key to stopping
the demand for drugs. DARE has become the model drug preven-
tion program for law enforcement communities worldwide. The im-
plementation and presentation of the DARE curriculum is essen-
tial in accomplishing the goals of drug eradication among society's
youth.

We must acknowledge that the welfare of our society rests upon
the ability of our children to cope with the responsibilities and
stress which they will inherit as our future leaders and workers.
DARE was developed to help our children deal with the drug prob-
lem and meet these challenges.

DARE is a police officer-led, semester long series of classroom
lessons that teach fifth and sixth grade children how to resist the
pressures to experiment with drugs and alcohol.

Created in 1983 as a cooperative effort between the Los Angeles
Police Department and the Los Angeles Unified School District,
DARE employs law enforcement officers in school classrooms as
regular instructors. The DARE Program has proven so successful
that it has expanded into more than 3,000 communities in all 50
states, Australia, New Zealand, American Samoa, Canada and the
Department of Defense Dependents Schools worldwide. DARE will
reach over 20 million students this year.

DARE goes beyond the traditional drug abuse programs. Typical-
ly, these programs emphasize drug identification and the harmful
effects of drug and alcohol. Traditional programs warn children not
to use these substanceo, but they do not teach them how to resist
the pressures to try drugs and alcohol. DARE gives children skills
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to recognize and resist the subtle and overt pressures that cause
them to experiment with drugs and alcohol.

Rather than just offering slogans or organizing rallies, DARE
provides students with arTurate information about alcohol and
drugs; teaches students ways to say no while providing alterna-
tives; teaches students decision making skills and the consequences
of their behavior; and builds self esteem while teaching kids how to
resist peer pressure. It is the only program that gives children
something substantial to use when they are offered drugs.

The program, whose core curriculum is in the fifth and sixth
grade, is divided into four components. It has since been expanded
in Los Angeles and now, in many of the states around the country,
to K through 12.

We have a K through 4 grade visitation. This acquaints the chil-
dren with the DARE officer and lays the groundwork for the 17 les-
sons they will receive in the fifth and sixth grade. The fifth and
sixth grade core classes is the foundation of the program. It pro-
vides the students with the skills they will need as young adults to
resist the temptation of drug abuse.

There is a ten lesson follow up in junior high school to the origi-
nal 17 lessons, and those lessons reinforce the values students
learn in elementary school.

In high school, there are five lessons led by the police officer, as
well as two follow up lessons by the teacher that take the students
into adulthood. DARE combines all the previously learned values
and experiences, and applies them to real life situations, teaching
young adults the value of staying drug free.

Experience has demonstrated how quickly the drug epidemic can
spread. In Los Angeles, where the DARE program started, statis-
tics have shown a dramatic reduction in drug abuse and drug use
in the high schools.

DARE has been doing its job now for more than half a decade,
and it is succeeding. It is not a one-hour, once a year visit by a
stranger. It is four and a half months of straight talk with someone
who becomes a friend, a confidante and an ally. It leaves a lasting
impression on kids and their families. And, now DARE is working
nationwide, even worldwide, for our most valuable resourceour
children.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Commander Walter Mitchell follows:]
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PRESENTATION TO THE CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES
Drug abuse Eesistance Education

D.A.R.E.
Commander Walt Mitchell

Los Angeles Police Department

There is no question that the magnitude of drug abuse and gang
violence in our society is high and spills over to the schools,
especially with the increase in use of crack cocaine in the last few
years.

The statistics relating to drug use on U.S. school campuses are
shocking. According to the September 1989 National Drug Control
Strategy published by the White House, "Half of all teens in a recent
national survey said that drugs were being used in their schools, and
four in ten said that they were being old there." To successfully
combat the social problem of drug abuse, we must mobilize our schools
and law enforcement agencies and entire oommunities must focus their
resources on this problem.

Drug abuse is everyone's problem. Drug abuse reduces effective
learning in school. Recent National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA)
statistics reveal that 54% of graduating students HAVE USED MARIJUANA
(some as young as 9 years of age).

Nationally, 26% of the workers are under the influence while on the
job and 20%-40% of all heavy cocaine users have to steal or become
drug dealers to support their habit. The Surgeon General states that
thousands of people die annually in the U.S. from heroin and cocaine
overdoses. The most innocent victims are babies born to
cocaine-addicted mothers. The babies are usually underweight and
sometimes are mentally or physically deformed and addicted to the
drug.

Drugs are a big business. Regardless of time, money and manpower
being devoted to attack narcotics trafficking as a police problem,
this dirty business is thriving. It is thriving precisely because it
is a business, and like any business it succeeds by responding to one
of the fundamental laws of economics - SUPPLY AND DEMAND. As long as
there is a demand for illegal drugs there will be hustlers who are
ready to supply it.

Law enforcement executives throughout the United States and around
the world recognize that prevention is the key to stopping the demand
for drugs, and D.A.R.E. has become the model drug prevention program
for law enforcement communities worldwide. The implementation and
presentation of the DARE curriculum is essential to accomplishing the
goal of drug abuse eradication among society's youth.

We must acknowledge that the welfare of our society rests upon the
ability of our children to cope with the responsibilities and
stresses which they will inherit as our future leaders and workers.
D.A.R.E. was developed to help our children deal with the drug
problem and meet these challenges.

D.A.R.E. is a police officer-led, semester long series of classroom
lessons that teach fifth and sixth grade children flOW to resist the
pressure to experiment with drugs and alcohol.

-1-
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Created in 1983 as a cooperative effort between the Los Angeles
Police Department and the Los Angeles Unified School District,
D.A.R.E. employs law enforcement officers in school classrooms as
regular instructors. The D.A.R.E. Program has proven so successful
that it has expanded into more than 3,000 communities in all 50
states, Australia, New Zealand, American Samoa, Canada and the
Department of Defense Dependents Schools worldwide. To date, over 20
million children have been impacted by D.A.R.E.

D.A.R.E. goes beyond the traditional drUg abuse programs. Typically,
these programs mphasize drug identification and the harmful effects
of drugs and alcohol. Traditional programs warn children not to use
these substances, but do not teach them HO to resist the pressures
to try drugs and alcohol. D.A.R.E. gives children skills to
recognize and resist the subtle and ovrt pressures that cause them
to experiment with drugs and alcohol. Rather than just offering
slogans or organizing ralliee, D.A.R.E.

-provides students with accurate information about alcohol
and drugs;

-teaches students ways to say "NO" while providing alternatives;
-teaches students decision making skills and the consequences of
their behavior; and

-builds self esteem while teaching kids how to resist peer
pressure. It's the only program that gives children something
substantial to use when offered drugs.

The D.A.R.E. Program is divided into four components:

K-4th grade visitations: This acquaints the children with the
D.A.R.E. officer and lays the ground work for the 17 lessons they
will receive in 5th or 6th grade.

5th/6th grade core classes: This is the foundation of the
D.A.R.E. Program. It provides the students with the skills they
will need as young adults to resist the temptations of drug
abuse.

Junior High: These 10 lessons are a follow-up to the original 17
lessons. They reinforce the values students learned in
elementary school.

High School: These 5 lessons take the students into adulthood.
D.A.R.E. combines all the previously learned values and
experiences and applies then to real life situations, teaching
young adults the value of staying drug free.

Experience has demonstrated how quickly ths drug epidemic can
spread. In Los Angeles, where the D.A.R.E. Program started,
statistics show a dramatic reduction in drug use (Handout attachments
A B).

D.A.R.E. has been doing its job for half a decade, and it's
succeeding. It's not a one-hour, once-a-year visit by a stranger.
It's four-and-a-half months of straight talk with someone who becomes
a friend, a confidant, an ally. It leaves a lasting impression on
kids and their families. And now D.A.R.E. is working nationwide,
even worldwide - for all our kids.

-2-
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STUDIES CREDIT DA.R.E.
IN DRAMATIC REDUCTION OF

SUBSTANCE ABUSE IN LA. SCHOOLS

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION REPORT

A draws* decrease in the incidence of substance abuse in Los Angeles City
schools WU reported in a recently published study conducted by the California
Department of Education. The School Crime
la California study found the substance abuse
has dropped sn in the last four years in the
average Los Angeles City school. The study
reported the incidents of substance abuse,
which included the possession, use and sale of
drugs. The study credited the Drug Akin
Resistance Education (D.A.R.E.) Program and
recommended thata similar approach be
applied to other crime areas. A 1988 Depart-
ment of Justice study (Report to the Attorney
General: Biennial Survey of Drug and Akohol
use among California Students ix Grades 7, 8
and 11) also found that substance abuse on
school campuses has declined in the three
grades studied.

14USD ANNUAL CRIME REPORT

4

TREND IN SUBSTANCE ABUSE
LOS ANNUS WY SCHOOLS
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A significant decline in the number of drug possessions for the second year in a row
was reported by the Los Angeles Unified School District's Annual Crime report.
The report is compiled from numbers submitted by each of the more than 600 Los
Angeles City schools. During the 1989 - 90 school year. there were 288 riports of
drugs, including alcohol, found on campus, a decrease of a% from the previous
year. District officials attributed the decline in part to the Drug Abuse Resistance
Education (DA.R.E.) Program.
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TREND IN SUBSTANCE ABUSE
LOS ANGELES CITY SCHOOLS
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MS. UNSOELD. Thank you. Congressman Kildee, would you like to
comment?

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Madame Chairperson. The term effective
education is very controversial at times, although I think it is a
good thing. When I taught high school, people would ask me, what
do you teach? And, I would say I teach kids. The kids are the im-
portant thing. I happened to teach Latin, but I taught kids, and I
tried to help those Young people have some self-respect.

Is that a component of your program, to help them really respect
themselves, and know who and what they really are?

Commander MITCHELL. Yes, exactly. One of the components is
self-esteem. The key to the DARE program, I believe, transcends
not just drug abuse, but everything else they do in their life, be-
cause they are taught life skills.

We have found that DARE just does not impact the drug prob-
lem. It impacts all of the fringe things that go on in school. DARE
kids are better students. Their parents report that they are better
kids at home once they have gone through the DARE program.
This is because they are taught life skills, they are not just taught
to say no to drugs.

Mr. KILDEE. When I taught school, and I taught in the inner-city
school, I had a cross-section of the City of Flint. I had, probably,
the son of the wealthiest person in Flint, and the sons and daugh-
ters of some of the poorer people. But I did discover your point
there. If you can help a child achieve success in any areaif they
do a little better in scl'ool, or even in sportsthey feel that they
can achieve.

I think, very often young people feel they are doomed to failure.
If you can program them for some success, they feel that they do
have that ability to succeed. And I think that is important.

You mentioned providing alternatives to drugs. Could you talk a
bit about that? Which type of alternatives?

Commander MITCHELL. Well, as you said, they are taught to feel
good about themselves. If you can teach a kid that they do not need
drugs to succeed, that they can become proficient in whatever they
try. We do this in a number of ways.

One is by bringing in older kids who have succeeded. For exam-
ple, the high school athlete of the year, who has never tried drugs,
and who has succeeded in what he has done. He is popular in
school. These kind of things make an impression on a young child.
These are the kind of alternatives that are available to them.

And, recently, we just started another program that is kind of an
offshoot of the DARE program. It is called an After School Alterna-
tives Program. Currently we are piloting it in one junior high
school, because we found that once the kids get out of school, you
lose touch with them. And, in today's society, where you have
many households where both parents work, there is a period of
time from 3 p.m. in the afternoon until 6 p.m. at night where kids
are sometimes on their own. And, idle hands sometimes get into
trouble.

So, we have started this After School Alternative Program, that
involves teaching kids or involving kids in things other than just
sports, like arta and crafts, cheerleading ahd music. We are doing
that with a grant provided by the Nancy Reagan Foundation. So

9
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far we have been very pleased with the results and are looking to
expand that program.

Mr. Mum. Just one final statement, Madame Chairperson. My
subcommittee has under its jurisdiction the Head Start Program.
And, the Head Start Program really h lips that child succeed. And,
if that child succeeds, they do feel better about themself and feel
that they can find some happiness, in achievement. I can see that
you have incorporated that whole idea into this program, too, by
these alternatives.

We have found out in the Head Start Program, that the money
that we invest in thatand Congresswoman Unsoeld is co-sponsor
of the bill to fully fund Head Start, a bill which just passed this
year, that we save money down the road, in remediation, in incar-
ceration, in welfare programs, and in reducing teenage pregnan-
cies. There have been long-term, longitudinal studies to show that.

Furthermore, I can see that you have really incorporated that
element very well. I really think people have to realize that they
can succeed. And, if they can succeed, they will feel better about
themselves.

Just in summary, Madame Chairman, I can recall when my son
Paul, who is 17 and is starting at Michigan State University in two
weeks, was about eight years old, right after he made his first Holy
Communion. I was tucking him into bed one night and heard his
formal prayers. When he finished his formal prayers, he said,
"Daddy, I love God; I love Mommy; I love you; I love Laura; I love
David; and I love me." And that was very important.

I am happy to see that you realize that when you are dealing
with these young people, you can not just use the pharmacological
approach to drugs. You really have to get into that person them-
self, and give him or her some chance to succeed and feel good
about themself. I think that is the heart of your program, and I am
really impressed by it. Thank you very much.

Commander MITCHELL. Your point is well taken. about the Head
Start Program paying dividends down the road. I think that the
dividends of the DARE program are truly yet to be seen. It is a
long-term solution; it is not a quick fix

Yes, we still have to do all of the other things in the drug war.
We have to go into foreign countries and eliminate drugs at the
source. We have to intercept at the border. We have to provide
comprehensive user accountability programs and treatment pro-
grams. But, the real long-term effect is education at a very young
age. And, it is a pay me now or pay me later. And, if we invest
now, then I think the long-term benefits are really going to be
worthwhile.

Mr. KILDEE. Do you think the $15 million will well be recouped,
many times?

Commander MITCHELL. Absolutely, absolutely.
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you.
Ms. UNEIOELD. We may be able to expand on that in the future,

then. I would like to take advantage of your experience and exper-
tise and ask you a question that may be a little unfair. But, we are
beginning to see the youth gangs come into this area. How do you
suggest we start dealing with it? And, is there a role that DARE
may play in that?

' 1)
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Commander MITCHELL. Well, DARE works with gangs in the
same way that it works with drugs. If you teach a kid at a young
age that he or she does not need drugs, or does not need that gang
dfiliation, then I think, again, it IB a long-term commitment.

But, dealing with the gangs straight out now, you have to deal
with them very forcefully; make an example of gang-related crime.
You can not publicize and give air time to gang members, glorify
gang members. They love to stand in front of the camera and talk
about their gang affiliation. Those kind of things perpetuate the
gang problem.

And, the gang activity is strongly financed by their involvement
with drugs. So, it is very tightly knit and tied together. Therefore,
the drug war is going to eventually make a significant impact on
the gang war also.

Ms. UNsonn. Would you briefly share with us how this program
was launched? What was it that gave you the idea, the drive?

Commander MITCHELL. It was launched in 1983 when the Chief
of Police of Los Angeles, Darryl Gates, decided that the drug war
needed to be won from the grassroots level on up. He went to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction at the time, Dr. Harry Han-
dler, and asked him to develop a curriculum by educators, to ,be
presented by police officers. They formed a partnership, and from
there, DARE was born, with ten officers in the city of Los Angeles,
in 50 schools.

It has, of course, since expanded to now over 7,000 DARE officers
in over 3,000 communities in the United States.

MS. UNSOELD. Would you like to give a single piece of advice that
we should take back to our colleagues, as they think about the
whole problem of drug and alcohol abuse in our society?

Commander MITCHELL. I think if I were to give one piece of
advice, it would be that I think the drug war and the National
drug strategy is a good one. Its only flaw is that there is not
enough money directed at education, when you talk about $9 or $10
billion, whatever it is up to now. I walked into a warehouse in Los
Angeles last October, and saw enough cocaine in one warehouse,
that if it were sold at street value, it would finance the whole drug
war in this country. It was worth almost $9 billion in street value.
And, in addition to that, there was $12.4 million in cash sitting on
the ground in that same warehouse.

The amount of money and cocaine in this country is mind bog-
gling. We estimate that we only seize as little as 10 percent of the
total product. So, you can just imagine what is out there. And, you
can also imagine just how much money is out there.

We have got to begin putting more money into the effort than
the people who are running the drug cartels are putting into the
cocaine.

MS. UNSOELD. Lesson received. Thank you very much, Command-
er.

Commander MITCHELL. Thank you.
MS. UNSOELD I really appreciate your coming from so far, but we

will carry your message further.
Commander MITCHELL. It was my pleasure. Thank you for invit-

ing me.

" 1
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MS. UNSOELD. Thank you. Next, I am going to call upon our expe-
rienced students. We have with us Celeste Eatmon and Roy Bon-
durant, two students. And, two parents, Candy and Skip. Would
you four like to come up?

Celeste is from Covington Junior High here in Vancouver, and
she participated in the DARE satellite down link, with Congress-
man Gephardt and myself, to this area's elementary schools.

And Roy is from Tenino, Washington. The first came to my at-
tention when he spoke up at a town hall meeting.

Celeste, would you like to be first?
MS. EATMON. Sure.
MS. UNSOELD. We do welcome you here today.

STATEMENT OF CELESTE EATMON, STUDENT, VANCOUVER,
WASHINGTON

MS. EATMON. Thanks. The DARE program is great for kids. It
teaches them what drugs are and how it can harm your body.
Before the DARE program I knew little about drugs, but by the
time DARE was almost over I was more knowledgeable to icnow
what drugs are how they can harm our bodies, and how easy it is
to say no.

Time and time again, I would worry what I would do if someone
bigger or older than me offered me drugs. But, now I know if some-
one offers me drugs, I can say no, and they will leave me alone. I
think kids all over the world should have a chance to learn about
drugs, and how better you are without them.

I think DARE is the best way to learn about drugs, and now that
I know about drugs, maybe I can help someone else make the right
decision.

Ms. UNSOELD. Thank you. Roy, would you like to comment for us,
please?

STATEMENT OF ROY BONDURANT, STUDENT, TENINO,
WASHINGTON

Mr. BONDURANT. Well, I am Roy Bondurant, and I am in the sev-
enth grade. And, I thank you for letting me come here today. The
DARE program is a good program, but there is one problem that I
th'nk that should be solvesi. That it should be for more grades, be-
sides just the sixth and seventh gradefifth and sixth grade.

I think that it should go from kindergarten up to high school.
And, then, when they might go into college, they could have a brief
telling of the DARE program again. And, that it should be funded
more by the country. Thank you.

Ms. UNSOELD. Thank you. Candy, would you like to comment?

STATEMENT OF MRS. CANDY EATMON, PARENT, VANCOUVER,
WASHINGTON

Mrs. EATMON. Well, before Celeste started in the DARE program,
I had not even heard of it. But, watching her come home, and she
was always, pretty good at homework. But, she always made sure
that she brought her DARE notebook home and shared it with me.

And, she just got really excited. She started cn her own personal
little war against drugs. She was taught well. I think teaching
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them no, to say no, that no is such a powerful word. I mean, they
hear it when they are growing up and they think, no big deal, you
know, what is no? I am going to do what I want anyway.

But, when they get to this age, they learn how powerful that
word is and how to use it and how to protect themselves. And they
learn that drugs do not have to be that fearful. I know she was
scared going into junior high. There are drugs in junior high. My
son has been offered drugs before, during the last couple of years.
And, now, Celestedoes not have the fear of someone walking up to
her, and saying, "Do you want to buy some pot, or do you want to
buy some pills?"

And, having the peer pressure and thinking, yeah, I suppose I
should take itnow she can say. " no, just leave me alone, go
away." Or, even to be able to help some kids that are in that kind
of a bind.

It is a great program, and I agree with this young gentleman
here that it should start younger: kindergarten on up. So we can
get them while they are young. Those police officers play a really
important role in the relationship with those kids. They should
start younger and carry through and develop that relationship
with them.

And, I think, hopefully, by the year 2000, we will have a drug-
free school and people.

MS. UNBOELD. I apologize that I did not ask you to start out in a
way that would help us put this record together. Would you mind
giving your name and spelling it? And, the address, please?

Mrs. EATMON. My name is Candy Eatmon, E-A-T-M-O-N. My ad-
dress is 10705 Northeast 80th Street, Vancouver, Washington.

Ms. UNSOELD. Thank you. Skip, would you like to give those de-
tails, too, and then continue?

STATEMENT OF ROY "SKIP" BONDURANT, PARENT, TENINO,
WASHINGTON

Mr. SKIP BONDURANT. My name is Roy L. Bondurant, Skip. The
spelling is B-O-N-D-U-R-A-N-T. Address is 4421 121st Avenue, S.E.,
Tenino, T-E-N-I-N-0, Washington 98589.

I am a disabled veteran, and being disabled, I have a lot of time
to put into community activities. The DARE program is one of the
best things I have seen in the schools. It is new in our town, and it
has really made a great impact.

Talking with the police, talking with the school officials, of
course, the kids, my ownthey all love it. But, once again, it
should be first through the 12th. The funding needs very much to
be a lot more.

But, also, I find in talking with the schools, each area has got a
different way. One does it one way, one does it another way. If
there could be more consistency, so that being military, moving
around, you get it one way in one place. You move to ....nother they
get it some other way. Well, why have you not got a medal? We
have medals. Why have you not got this award? We got awards.

You will find this differenceonce I started asking questions,
just in the small locality of my county. I think there should be a lot
more of that. The young people highly surprised me with Voice of
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Democracy. It is a thing the VFW has got. And, the young people
in that, they were very impressed with medals. They are very
cheap; they are very easy to put together, and they like it. A little
reward for a job well done, the home study, the extra work they
put into it. I find this is very helpful to motivate young people.

Also, try, on a national basis, try and get the veterans' groups
involved. They are starting talking at the headquarters. Not so
much in the localthey are trying to get the little local units to-
gether. Once we get them working with the police forces, with the
schools, you will have a vast amount of volunteers out there.

A lot of them are retired now. All your World War II, Korean
veterans are retired. They are looking for something to do. They
love to work with their grandchildren and all, and that is what we
are talking about. Their grandchildren and great grandchildren. I
think that could be a heavy resource to supplement the police offi-
cers and school officials on this.

Also, the self-esteem part is extremely important. When my
health gave out I was teaching Advanced Electronics in the Army's
Communication School, and I would get young people, 18 years old.
I would ask them, what do you think about this? Have you got any
ideas? And, somebody would be very hesitant, and they would come
up with a small idea. And, I would go, that is great, you know.
Come back to the office and we will expand on it. And, you just
flabbergast them.

Here they are in the top electronic schools in this nation. The
cream of the crop. And, you get a young person there and he has
never heard this before in his life. His parents definitely did not
have time for him. And, it was one of the things that got me very
much when I started my volunteer work, working with the schools.
The young people need so much of this. It is totally lacking,
throughout the country.

I was very fortunate to have the experience of in the military in
teaching a good cross-section of the Nation: The young men and
women, and they are fantastic in this country.

Also, working with the Ride a Bike program we veterans have.
The safety program we put on in the springthey are getting their
bicycles out, and they are racing and going. And, we work with our
local police and sheriffs department. It is a safety program, as well
as a good way to get to know your local policeman.

And, you see these little kids there. There is a policeman, and his
momma tells him that if he is bad, she is going to have the police-
man arrest him. And, you have all heard that. I hear it all the
time, you know the people scare their kids.

This is the neatest thing, because that little kid is skipping along
and holding that policeman, and wanting, this is my daddy, this is
my mommy. That is so great, and that is what DARE is doing. It is
just something that this nation needs to put a lot more effort into.

And, this DARE program is just fantastic, but you have got to
fund it. You have got to fund it.

Ms. UNSOELD. Thank you. Celeste and Roy, I would like to ask
both of you, have you had to use your DARE training in any practi-
cal way? If you could give an example. Or have you seen one of
your classmates actually use it?
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Mr. BONDURANT. Well, I had a very good friend that gotdied,
using drugs. Yeah, he was around 40 or 35.

Ms. UNSOELD. Yes. And, he lacked the skills that you had
learned?

Mr. B6NDURANT. Yeah.
Ms. UNSOELD. Celeste, have you ever had to make use of the

skills you have learned?
Ms. EATMON. No, but I think I will have to in the future.
Ms. UNSOELD. Have you obser ved, in your schools, have you seen

the temptations and the pressures out there? You have already
seen that. Well, we are proud of you and pleased that you are
going to be carrying that message forward, too.

Dale, would you like to comment?
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Madame Chair. When I was in the first

gradethat was a long, long time agowe had a policeman come
into all the schools in Flint, Michigan, including the parochial
school I was attending. His name was Sergeant Wilbur LaGree, I
still remember that. And, I know at that time, that he helped form
for me a very positive attitude towards a police person: a very posi-
tive attitude.

As a matter of fact, as many years ago as it was that I was in
first grade, Sergeant LaGree is still living in Flint and I still see
him from time to time and tell him of the many things he taught
usbasically safety, crossing streets. But, he taught us really more
than thata respect for the police officer, who really enforces the
law, and therefore, respect for the law.

May I ask you this, what is the attitude, generally, of the stu-
dents towards the police officer who conducts this program in your
school? Could you comment on that? Is it a positive attitude, an at-
titude where you feel that they are being helpful? Roy or Celeste,
either one of you.

Mr. BONDURANT. Well, I talked to some of my fellow classmates
yesterday about it, and all of them would like the DARE program
to go through all the schools. And, they like the DARE officers that
go to the schools.

Mr. KILDEE. Celeste?
MS. EATMON. Before Sergeant Kessel came to our school, I think

that most of the kids in school thought maybe drugs might be all
right, may be all right to try. But, when Sergeant Kessel came in,
he made us fee! beAter about ourselves and more confident. And, I
think that brought our hopes up, and we felt more confident about
him. He became a very close friend to all of us.

Mr. KILDEL Very good. I really appreciate it. I think very often
we learn so much from those who are the beneficiaries of this pro-
gram. And, I think, Roy and Celeste, you have been very helpful to
the committee.

Just let me remind you, too, that the record of this hearing today
becomes part of the permanent archives of the United States. They
will be deposited in the Library of Congress. A thousand years
from now they will be there. As a matter of fact, in case we are not
able to keep the peacewhich I hope and pray to God we will
deep beneath the mountains of Maryland, extra copies of these
hearings are kept with all of Congressional records. So, you have
made some history here today by your testimony.

r
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So, 1,000 years from now, they will know, Roy and Celeste, that
you testified before this committee and were very helpful to us.
Thank you very much.

Ms. UNSOELD. I want to ask one additional question about the pa-
rental involvement in the DARE program, any comments or obser-
vations?

Mrs. EATMON. Well, I was really impressed at sixth grade grad-
uation. I WBB not too involved with it. I mean, Celeste would share
with me when she got home some things that they were doing that
week. But, at the end of the sixth grade graduation, Sergeant
Kessel was standing up and giving one of the cheers, all of those
'Ads were so involved and so excited, and I do not know that there
is a whole lot for the parents to get involved in.

Ms. UNSOELD. Would it have been as effective if you had not been
there?

Mrs. EATMON. No, heavens no.
Ms. UNSOELD. Support of the kids. Skip, you wanted to comment?
Mr. SKIP BONDURANT. Yeah. Up in our school there is, as far as I

know, no parent involvement. And, that would be absolutely posi-
tive, if you can get the parents out. Because asking around town,
DARE, what is that? There are still so many people who do not
know. That shows that the parents are not getting the word out.
And, that was what I was getting to, if you could have a little bit
more universal type of program, and consolidate it more.

Ms. UNSOELD. Last question, Roy and Celeste. DARE has had an
influence on you. Do you think it has had a similar type of influ-
ence on your classmates?

Mr. BONDURANT. Well, the ones that I talked to, they really
think that it is a good thing that they have it. And, they want it
more than just in the fifth and sixth grade.

MS. UNSOELD. Okay. Celeste?
MS. EATMON. My friends are really glad that Sergeant Kessel

came into our school. We really got into it. I think that really
helped a lot. I am hoping, and all my friends are hoping, that Ser-
geant Kessel will come back to junior high and teach us more
about what he knows about drugs.

Ms. UNSOELD. Thank you very much. A good testament to the
program. We appreciate your being here today.

On the next panel we will have Dr. Tony Lukin, who is the
DARE coordinator for the Washington State Criminal Justice
Training Commission, Paul Dziedzic, who is the Special Assistant
to the Governor on Substance Abuse, Washington State, and Offi-
cer Susan Krause, who works with Dr. Lukin.

STATEMENT OF DR. ANTHONY A. LUKIN, DARE COORDINATOR,
WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMIS-
SION; ACCOMPANIED BY: SUSAN KRAUSE, POLICE OFFICER,
WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMIS-
SION

Mr. LUKIN. Thank you very much for allowing the Criminal Jus-
tice Training Commission to be here today to testify. I would first
of all like to depart for a minute and thank Commander Mitchell
for his kin-3 words about the Washington State DARE program. It
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was most generous of him, and I might hasten to add, I t,ta lly
agree with him. I do think we have a very strong program here.

And, I think there are two reasons for that. One is the type of
DARE officer we have in this state, who is represented here in this
room. I think the second reason is our proximity to Los Angeles,
both geographically and emotionally. In adfition, we have the guid-
ance and leadership they provide us, that they have provided us
since the beginning, and that they continue to provile us. I think
those are the reasons we have such a strong DARE prlgram, and I
appreciate those kind remarks.

I would like to spend a few minutes addressing the training com-
ponent of the DARE program. As you know, the Washington State
Criminal Justice Training Commission is responsible for all train-
ing. And, like our counterparts in most of the states in the Nation,
we are the sole agency responsible for the DARE program in train-
ing.

We support the efforts to financially aid police departments, so
that they can, in many cases, provide for the first time, and in a lot
of other cases, expand their DARE programs to reach all the
schools in their jurisdiction, and expand their programs to reach
the middle school and high school.

However, that also has some serious implications on those state
agencies that have to do the training. It costh us approximately
$1,000 to train one officer to become a DARE officer. That is the
basic two week tioining that allows them to be certified as a DARE
officer, and to go ilia) the schools and teach.

But that is not where our training ends. We provide that in
Washington State; we try to provide that training at least three
times a year. We could probably do six easily, and still have those
classes filled. We try to train approximately 40 officers each train-
ing class. We do not like to do more than that, although September
17 we start a class with 48 officers. Basically, this is just because
the demand is there.

That is a financial burden upon us. But, that is only where it
begins, that initial basic training. We believe it is necessary to
have an advanced training session at least once a year f "lose
officers, to provide them with more material, more inform: 1 as
it is developed. To upgrade their information on drugs and co c ac-
tivity in the state. To provide them with new teaching techr ,Les,
as well as classroom management techniques.

This last time in June, in East Wenatchee, we brought up Ber-
niece Wadenas from the Los Angeles Unified School District to give
some insight. She goes around the world teaching DARE officers,
and gave us some insight on how to more effectively deliver the 17
DARE lessons.

Besides that training, we feel it is necesrary to provide the
DARE officers with child abuse training. The DARE officer is fre-
quently the only person that a child will go to talk to about physi-
cal or sexual abuse that is taking place. We think it is mandatory
that our DARE officers be skilled in that type of training. So, for
the first time this year, we are going to try to implement that
training on a statewide basis so that every DARE officer who has
not yet, will have child abuse training.
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We also know we are expanding the DARE program, as Com-
mander Mitchell talked about, at the high school level. We have a
pilot program here in Washington State, in the Olympia School
District, where a police officer and a teacher are teaching the high
school curriculum. Once that is adopted, we are sure that we are
going to be training that component here in this state, and that
adds another major financial ramification to it.

Therefore, the training aspect must not be overlooked, and the
importance of that is to maintain the credibility of the program, se
that only one center be allowed to do that, to uphold the standards.

There is also another function that training implies, and my col-
league Susan Krause, Officer Susan Krause from the Lacey Police
Department, who is now assigned to the Criminal Justice Training
Commission, will talk about that other component that we think is
necessary and follows along with the training component.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Anthony A. Lukin follows:]
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MS. KRAUSE. Our DARE program consists of much more than the
training of a DARE officer. The responsibility must also include
the support and the monitoring of these officers that are teaching
DARE. And, while it is true that the individual departments are
responsible for their own program, these programs must always
meet the guidelines that have been established by DARE America
and the DARE National Training Commission.

We see it as our responsibility to be available to answer ques-
tions, to give guidance, and to enforce the principles and the stand-
ards of DARE.

We believe that it is vital to a successful DARE program that the
DARE officers, once trained, are monitored while in the schools.
This is critical for two reasons. First, it allows us to determine the
strengths and the weaknesses of our training program. We there-
fore can make any necessary adjustments to improve that program.
And, secondly, as teachers are evaluated by principals, we must
evaluate our own DARE officers. We must make sure that they
maintain the standard of excellence and are delivering the DARE
curriculum as it was meant to be delivered. For these reasons, and
for those outlined by Dr. Lukin, we urge the United States Con-
gress to assist in the efforts of designated state-wide training cen-
ters in accomplishing their tasks.

Finally, I would like to add one more item. The Washington
State Criminal Justice Training Commission not only trains offi-
cers from within our own state, but we have also trained officers
from Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, Montana, British Columbia, the
United States Army, the United States Air Force, and members of
the Tribal Police agencies.

And as police officers, we realize the importance of enforcing the
law, but we also believe that the long-term solution to the drug
problem lies in preventing drug abuse. We firmly believe that
DARE is law enforcements' most effective weapon in the war
against drugs. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Susan Krause follows:]
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STATEMENT OF PAUL DZIEDZIC, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE
GOVERNOR ON SUBSTANCE ABUSE, WASHINGTON STATE

Mr. DZIEDEC. Good morning, Congressman Unsoeld and Con-
gressman Kildee. I would like to take a couple of minutes to talk
about the context in this state for our substance abuse reductions
efforts and how DARE fits into that.

If I could, as a personal comment before I do that, I have worked
for 10 or 15 years with issues that the Committee on Education and
Labor has jurisdiction over. And, I think some recognition of your
willingnees to serve on that committee is due. It is not a committee
that puts itself in the path of powerful pacts. The constituency's
runaway kids are not going to re-elect a Congressperson. In fact,
the debate in the last few years seems to have been defined by
what cannot be done more than what can be done, and the con-
stituencies, sometimes, in their frustration, make it a very difficult
assignment. I have seen that. So, I want to personally recognize
their willingness to serve on the committee and give leadership to
issues that are very important to our communities and to our kids.

So, after that, I would like to make just a couple of comments
about the context for substance abuse reduction in this state. And,
really two things: that the problem is close to home, but so are the
solutions. Some people like to think this is somebody else's problem
to solve. If we could just take care of them, there, or if someone
else would stop the flow there, or stop the gangs or whatever, this
problem would be solved.

Why does law enforcement not take care of this? Why are the
schools not doing what they should? Why does treatment not work,
or whatever? It is easy to distance this problem, and that is a fatal
flaw. This problem is close to home, and it is for all of us.

It certainly means that the professionals who wear a uniform
need to conduct their roles effectively. They need to use the tools
we give them, the resources we give them, and they need to work
together effectively. And, we have heard something about that
today, and how DARE plays a role in that.

But that alone is not enough. This has to be something behind
which an entire community rallies to turn it around, and does not
leave it for just part of the community.

In your opening comments you talked about the problem in this
state, so I will not belabor the statistics, because you have already
seen many of the ones that I would. It is a birth to death problem.
It is in schools; it is in neighborhoods; it is in businesses. It costs a
lot in business productivity, in deaths, in damage, in lost opportuni-
ties.

I think the one thing I would like to emphasize is that this is not
just crack. And it is not just heroin. And, yes, we have terrible
problems with that in this state. It is not just marijuana, although
this state has a very potent THC level marijuana that puts us as
an export state with that product. It is not just meth labs, although
this state has a particular problem with meth labs, in both the de-
struction that the drug does as well as the toxic waste site left
behind when the production is done.

All those together are not the problem. In fact, alcohol probably,
if we looked at any measure of numbers, in deaths and damage,
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creates more damage than all those drugs together in this state,
and my guess is that this is true in any community in this state,
even though this state is most severely impacted by gangs and
crack.

We have to realize it is that big of a problem, and it is that com-
plicated a problem. And, that for a fifth grader, or a seventh
grader, or a ninth grader, alcohol is an illegal drug, in addition to
marijuana or crack cocaine. That is really the challenge that a
DARE officer or a treatment person or a police officer faces in a
community.

The solutions are close to home. I am going to be kind of simplis-
tic, and I apologize. But it really does take at least a couple of
stages. First of all, a community needs to have a unified strategy, a
game plan that says "we are together; we are going to turn this
around." -

People need to see that the education system, is included, as well
as the treatment system, and the law enforcement system, and
churches, businesses, and veterans' groups. It needs to see that
there is a game plan. Not a full fleshed out blue print, that people
can point to page 35 and say, "that is what is happening tomor-
row," but a unified strategy that people can get behind.

The second stage is that a lot of people need to come off the side-
lines. In homes, in businesses, in where they live and where they
work and where they play. Norms have to change. Values have to
change, together.

The good news is, we see that happening in many communities
in this state. Communities are mobilizing. It is a catch phrase we
use here, but communities are mobilizing. They are pulling togeth-
er. More people are involved. There are ways the state and Federal
Government can assist that.

To speak of one specifically, that is a Federal program, the Com-
munity Partnership Grants, which are competitive grants of flexi-
ble money available to communities. However, communities have
to pull together in order to qualify for them. There will likely be
communities in this state that will qualify for those grants in the
next couple of weeks, and there will be more to come. As we have
worked with communities with some state-level flexible money,
many communities integrate DARE obviously into their activities
and find the need to commit resources when they have them avail-
able to DARK But as part of the overall community strategy.

Finally, I would like to, without going throughand I will pro-
vide more copies to the committeelast fall we had 2P community
sessions throughout the state. Congressman Unsoeld, your staff at-
tended the ones in your district. We have a compilation that shows
the variety of things that communities are talking about that we
need to do to support them in communities.

Three observations about DARE: that as a father who has had a
daughter in the DARE program, as a person who has attended
some graduation programs both at the academy and in some
schools, and having met some of the great people who are DARE
officers, I would like to mention three things that have struck me
about the DARE program.

First, it does appear to have a solid impact with many kids. We
have talked about what it does: the whys of saying no and the hows
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of sayknono. It really does appear to have a solid impact with a lot
of kids, particularly in the fifth and sixth grade level. I think it

.does earlier as well. It may in the later levels; and we will have to
ste. But, I know from personal observation, it has a solid impact
with kids in the fifth and the sixth grade.

Secondly, it does build bridges. Not too long ago, it was pretty
normal for people to assume that the school did not want cops in
the building and that the cops were pretty frustrated with the
schools, because the schools did not have policies that supported
any kind of meaningful consequences. I do not want to say it has
disappeared, but I think the DARE program and other initiatives
have really changed the assumption here to be that they are all on
the same side. And, DARE officers, by working with school people,
are showing that they are not just a partnershipand that is
rightbut the fact that they are allies; they are team members.

The final thing that striuck me has been the commitment of the
DARE officers to what they are asked to do. We have talked about
the need for training for sexual and physical abuse. The stories I
have heard about a kid coming up afterwards and saying, "Officer
Chris, my mom," and going on with what mom is doing with her
drugs. The pain, the real pain that kids share, and what that asks
of people, of the DARE officers.

The only thing that I have found in DARE officersand it is not
a flawbut it seems to be a universal with the exception of Tony
Lukin, is that they get scared spitless when they have to go to
their graduation exercises and talk to the adult audiences. It is
something you have to work on in training. I do not know, these
guys and gals go through purgatory, if not the other, in thinking
about that graduation speech they have to give to the parents.

We need to be fair to DARE, and not assume it solves the whole
problem. I get asked a lot, what works? Does treatment work? Does
DARE work? And, I would suggest that there are probably some
better questions to ask. What do we expect it to do, and how well
does it do it? How can it do it better? And, that is for youth treat-
ment, or adult treatment, or for multi-jurisdiction law encnrcement
task forces, or for the DARE program. What do we expect it to do,
and how well does it meet that objective?

And then, how does that fit into the other things that need to
happen? I am delighted that in Los Angeles the DARE program is
looking at the after school hours. I would suggest that in Washing-
ton State communities, we ought not to expect the DARE program
to offer after school programs. We ought not to even expect the
schools to offer all the after school programs. Those, as an example,
are parts of what a community needs to rise up and provide. Let us
not expect DARE to do it all. That is unfair.

Finally, it summary, this is a problem that is close to home.
There are solutions that are close to home. And, the exciting thing
in this state is that people are finding those solutions, and are
making a difference. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Paul Dziedzic follows:]
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STATEWIDE SUBSTANCE ABUSE
REDUCTION STRAMOY

The impact of substance abuse, including alcohol and other drugs, is alarming and growing.

Thousands of babies are born each year to mothers who abuse akohol and other drugs. As many as one
in twenty live births are to cocaine users. Babies born with disabilities caused by drinking during pregnancy
number in the hundreds each year.

Despite some encouraging signs that the allure of certain drugs hats peaked among young adults,
experimentation and abuse continues in disturbing proportions.

More than half of this state's sixth graders twelve year olds have consumed alcohol. One in six tenth
graders drink every day, or binge drink regularly. Half of teen offenders commit their crimes high, drunk
or both. Overall, it is estimated that 80,000 children under the age of 18 have a substance abuse problem.

Crack cocaine and related gang violence haS become a major health and public safety issue in cities on both
sides of the state.

Experts say we are at a pivotal stage in the development of gang.based drug distribution here and face the
prospect of much greater penetration and violence.

Law enforcement ofliciak across the state report that the majonry of serious crimes against people and
property can be traced to drugs. Because of the glut facing the criminal justice system, even dealers who
are caught seem to return to the streets to operate without apparent consequences.

The workplace is at stake as well. Nearly ten to fifteen percent of the work force is estimated to use illegal
drugs on the job. Abuse of alcohol presents an even more damaging problem in the workplace. The drain
that substance abuse puts on productivity in this state is estimated at well over one billion dollars a year.

The impact of substance abuse reflects the disease that it is.

It attacks vulnerability and leaves greater weakness in its wake.

It claims individual lives and then spreads through families. Substance abuse presents a threat to businesses,
neighborhoods and communities across the state.

VFECTIVE ACTION TO MEET ThIS CHALLENOE RELIES UPON:

o Understanding that quick fixes and single approaches won't work.

o Commitment to Integrating prevention, treatment and law enforcement efforts into a
coordinated strategy to reduce both demand and supply.

o Each element of the coordinated strategy having adequate resources and tools to play their
role effectively.
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Focus on efforts IA the community where the damage is occurring and where answers must
be tailored to the needs and mon= of each community.

o lndhiduals taking responsibility for the problem in our own lives and in the contribution
we choose to make to our community.

The impact of substance abuse can be reduced - but it won't be done if left to agencies and orpnintions.

It will come through the decisions and actions of many individuals - parents, children, friends, neighbors,
coworkers - that support positive choices and openty oppose the destruction caused by substance abuse.
When those individual actions create a community consensus that substance abuse won't be tolerated, we
will have turner/ the corner on rebuilding healthy and safe places for our children, families, businesses, and
for us all.

Based on these premises, the state of Washington is committal to implementing the following three-part
soggy to reduce substance abuse.

'MEE PART STRAW-0Y TO REDUCE THE
INIPACF OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE

Develop cooperative community efforts that increase the effectiveness of available funds and that
provide opportunities for every citizen to become involved.

Challenge every Ott= to become involved in efforts to rebuild healthy and safe plasm br our
children, Milks, businesses and for us all

a Coordinate programs and polities of state government with particular attention to bow swell they
support effective and cooperative efforts its the community.

rt
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MS. UNSOELD. Mr. Kildee, would you like to lead off with the
questions?

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Madame Chairperson. Dr. Lukin, what
are the advantages of having a law enforcement officer teach the
DARE curriculum, versus a regular classroom teacher, and what
does your training program do to help those officers become good
educators?

Mr. LUKIN. In response to the first part of that question, I think
it is credibility. The officer walking into the classroom immediately
has a credibility concerning drugs. He or she is viewed as an
expert. Where a teacher has to earn that credibility, the law en-
forcement officer walks in the classroom with it, and would have to
try to lose it in order to be unsuccessful.

We address that in the training to try and build on that credibil-
ity by providing, and I mention that also in the advance training,
up to date information on drugs, on current treatment programs,
on all the ramifications of the drug abuse problem, not just the
narrow focus of law enforcement. BWe are also concerned with
credibility of that law enforcement officer and also the charisma,
the uniform.

When I started my law enforcement career in the 60s, the uni-
form was anathema on campuses. Now, it is wanted, and cherished
on most school campuses. I think one of the strengths of the DARE
program is that it is mandatory that it uses a law enforcement offi-
cer, a full time law enforcement officer: that they are there in uni-
form, without the firearm, to show that they can use their brains
and their heart. That is critical in law enforcement.

We always used to demand a lot of intestinal fortitude from
police officers. We also want to see that heart. And I think that
component makes DARE so successful. The curriculum is strong,
designed by curriculum specialists in the school district. However,
it is the messenger that brings that curriculum alive.

Mr. KILDEE. Could you tell us a bit about your selection process
of selecting the officer who would participate in the classroom in
this program?

Mr. LUKIN. The selection process is up to each individual agency
to select that officer they feel is best to teach DARE in their com-
munities. It is a representative of that chief or sheriff. And, I be-
lieve the chiefs and sheriffs, and those that are here, I am sure can
testify that they really take that responsibility seriously.

We recommend guidelines that are given to us, and that are rec-
ommended nationally by DARE America and the Los Angeles
Police Department. And, we try to hold to those guidelines.

Mr. KILDEE. Now, DARE is an incorporated entity in Los Ange-
les, right?

Mr. LUKIN. Yes.
Mr. KILDEE. I think that is very interesting, because when Con-

gresswoman Unsoeld brought this to our attention, we saw that
here was government working with essentially a private agency.
But, I think that is a good relationship. For example, the United
States Government needs airplanes, but we do not go into the busi-
ness of building airplanes, right? We go up to those companies that
know how to build them very well. They have had experiencepar-
ticularly here in Washington State, I believe.



34

And, I think that very often the government tries to do every-
thing just with a straight governmental program. If there is a pro-
gram out there that exists and is working well, then government
should give some assistance to that program, rather than going out
and reinventing a program without that experience. I think that
was probably one of the first things on which Jolene had to educate
us. I think I was really educated there, but now I am prepared to
go back and sell that idea more to the other Members of Congress.
Here is a program that does work, and with some Federal funds
all you are asking is for some of your own Federal dollars coming
back from the other Washington, to assist in this program.

So I want to go back again and indicate here is a program that
works; let us help them carry out their mission.

Mr. Luxust. I think that concept of copyrighted program is very
important, as Officer Krause pointed out. We maintain a standard.
And, the curriculum is delivered as it is meant to be delivered, and
as it was designed. And, I think that is critical to the program, and
to the integrity of the program. That is why it is so necessary that
the state agency responsible make sure that the curriculum is
being taught as it was meant to be taught, or otherwise it does not
become DARE. It is something else, but it is not DARE.

Mr. KILDEE. It does not get watered down then. Still using the
name but not the methods.

Mr. Ltamt. And, then, if it fails someplace, they will say, well,
gee, DARE failed. No, it did not. DARE, as they were delivering it
failed, and they were delivering it as it was not meant to be deliv-
ered. I think that is a crucial point to be made.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Madame Chair.
Ms. UNSOELD. You are talking about that combination of tough-

ness and heart. When I observed the graduation class of your offi-
cers, I thought it was toughness and heart, or love, because it so
manifested itself that those officers have not only their love of life
and their love of fellow human beings, but also their love of the
students with whom they were going to be working.

What are the elements of cooperation that are necessary between
law enforcement agencies and the schools, in order for you to have
a successful DARE program?

Mr. LUKIN. Well, it takes the whole hearted cooperation of both.
And, here you have an alien police officer going on somebody elsee
turf. The schoolsoverworked, overcrowded, their curriculum
filledhave to find time to allow this officer to come in and take
over a class for an hour, for 17 weeks.

Then there is also classroom visitations: the officer on campus.
Originally, there was some hesitancy on the part of some school
districts to get involved. Once they were involved, though, no one
has ever dropped out, once they had a DARE officer. In fact, you
will be hearing from some DARE officers today that were elected
by their fellow teachers as teacher of the year.

We have superintendents come talk to our classes, as you know,
that say they would support a DARE program if they had to and, if
they had the finances, too. Once DARE becomes part of the school
scene, it is something no one wants to give up.

Ms. UNSOELD. I wanted to comment that we had a couple of
teachers who would very much have liked to have been here today,
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but this being the first week of school, they were very reluctant to
turn that important time over to a suhe.t itute.

Tony, you talked about having tbo D ARE officers now incorpo-
rating into their testimony, child abusp, and sexual abuse.

Mr. LUKIN. Yes.
Ms. UNSOELD. How does that fit in? Does it distract or add to

your overall curriculum?
Mr. LUKIN. It will not be part of the initial two-week training

course. That is so tightly structured, and we can barely get that
finished in two weeks and certify the officers. But we are going to
make it part of the ongoing training that we provide for those
DARE officers, these child abuse courses.

Now, a lot of the DARE officers have already been detectives. As
you know, most of the DARE officers are veteran police officers,
and a lot of them have had detective experience. A lot of them
have had child abuse experience and have taken child abuse
courses elsewhere. But, some have not. And we want to make sure
that all DARE officers have that as part of their educational expe-
rience.

We have had too many cases where it has been critical to the
investigation of the case, the initial investigation of the case. In
fact, during my last training class, one of my training mentors was
called away by his police department because there was a young
girl who had been sexually assaulted, and the only person she
would talk to was her DARE officer. At that time, her DARE offi-
cer was at the training academy, helping to teach other DARE offi-
cers. He had to leave for the day to go interview her and talk to
her and get that information.

Ms. UNSOELD. Paul, do you feel that DARE is complimentary to
the other drug education programs with which you are working?

Mr. DZIEDZIC. It certainly seems to work that way in nearly
every place with which I am familiar. I think it is important that it
comes out of the agreement from local law enforcement to make
the incredible commitment of money that it takes, either money
out of hand or from people off the street. It takes the school district
the resource of time with the kids.

I think that if it were some suggestion of imposition on a school
district, I would hate to be the DARE officer in that situation. So, I
think it is working out because people locally are making it work
out as part of the overall efforts. But, again, in the context of other
things the school district does, or to go on, rather than turn it all
over to the DARE officer and say, "now, here, fix these kids." Any-
thing having to do with drug or alcohol is your job; we do every-
thing (Ise. I would expect that does not happen very often.

Ms. UNSOELD. It seems to me we have a constant balancing task
as to what is the appropriate role for the local governments, for the
state and for the Federal Government. What do you feel is the ap-
propriate Federal role to assist the state in the programs that the
two of you are most closely associated withthe three of you?

Mr. DZIEDZIC. I think there are two roles the state and local gov-
ernment in general should look at. First of all, it is a question of
resources into the specific r".00nsibilities that a community needs
to carry out to deal with the problem of treatment, education,
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fringe activities, and law enforcement activities, just as general cat-
egories.

But, I think the second role that we need to do better, both the
state and Federal Governmentis to be careful that we do not
work with communities that tear them apart more than help them
build. Longview and Vancouver will save themselves. We may help.
Some of how we give money is soit comes down with so many
strings into the community, that, in fact, the relationship a com-
munity has is outside of itself. It relates to the Department of
Social Services, or whatever, rather than to each other. So, I think
we need to look at specific ways in which we reinforce communities
pulling together.

The Community Partnership Program is a specific toolFederal
toolthat does that. It says, you get money if you pull together.
And, it is your money to decide how to spend. We are not going to
buy books or tennis shoes, or paper DARE officers, or whatever.
But, you pull together, and you know.

I think that is an important ingredient to combine with provid-
ing money into specific responsibilities. We have tended to say, we
need to fix this treatment problem. How much treatment money
can we give, and we define it through 20 pages of rules and regula-
tions. It comes to a community, and the treatment people relate to
treatment people in Olympia and DC, in a way that undermines
them working with others in the community.

We need to counterbalance that with some signals of pulling to-
gether, and then it will be reinforced.

Ms. UNSOELD. Very good point.
Mr. LUKIN. I think, as Paul said, the key word that I gleaned

from that was the partnership concept. DARE becomes a focal
point for a lot of partnerships. It gives a focal point for the commu-
nity to take an active effort. It is, what can We do about the drug
problem? Can we stake out houses? What can we do? Do we go on
citizen patrols, do we inform on our neighbors? What can we do?

DARE provides, I think, a focal point for total community in-
volvement, a rallying symbol to do something positive about the
drug abuse problem. It combines the three elements: the parents
and the community, the schools and the law enforcement agency,
in a community that are really the leading agencies. And, that can
bring in the other agencies to work together.

I mentioned on the training level, we train Federal officers. Why
do we train the U.S. Army officers? Well, at Ft. Lewis there are
hundreds of kids on that base, as well as on the surrounding
schools that are dependents of officers at Ft. Lewis. We train those
officers. Those kids are in contact every day with Washington State
kids. Those kids are Washington State kids. Some of them are here
for a long time, some of them are here for a short period of time.
But, those officers need to be trained, and they do a fantastic job
with the DARE program.

It is the same with the Air Force and the same with the Indian
tribes. As the Congressman has pointed out, there is a high inci-
dence of drug abuse on the Indian reservations. And, helping train
those Tribal police in the DARE program, has made a significant
impact. That is a partnership, working together.
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MS. UNSOELD. You have given us another message to take back
with us. Any final message you want to tell the rest of Congress?

Mr. Warr. Oh, I have a lot of messages I would like to tell them,
but none of them are appropriate here today.

[Laughter.]
Yes, I think the DARE program, as Officer Krause has pointed

out, is really law enforcement taking a pro-active role, not respond-
ing to a drug abuse problem in a traditional role, but in a pro-
active rob,. Trying to prevent the problem in the first place. And, I
think that is what has made a critical difference here.

Ms. UNSOELD. Very good.
Mr. DZIEDZIC. Maybe just a question. As you consider different

programs and different issues, put a question on your list as to how
does this help communities save themselves? And, see how differ-
ent programs and different initiatives can meet that test, in addi-
tion to the other things for which they need to be accountable.
Thank you.

Mr. LuKIN. Thank you very much.
Ms. UNSOELD. Excellent. We will now bring up all of our officers,

and let me see who all we have. The officers are just from the
Sheriff's office this time.

Jim Scharf from Snohomish County and Ron Johnson from the
Battlegroundyou are the Battleground Police Chief, and also per-
form all of the other duties.

And, Sheriff Scharf, would you like to begin?

STATEMENT OF SHERIFF JIM SCHARF, SNOHOMISH COUNTY

Sheriff SCHARF. Thank you very much. Congressman Unsoeld,
Congressman Kildee, it is a pleasure to be here today; thank you
for inviting me. If I may, for a minute, I would like to thank Com-
mander Mitchell of the Los Angeles Police Department, as well as
the Los Angeles Unified School District for having the vision in the
first place to impart their program into their jurisdiction; to devel-
op the curriculum. And, those people who developed the curricu-
lum, may I recommend that they get the equivalent of a Congres-
sional Medal of Honor, because they certainly deserve something
that has created, from my perspective and my 18 years in law en-
forcement, the most positive, effective program that I have ever
been involved with in saving our communities. So, my compliments
to the Los Angeles Police Department and Commander Mitchell.

The drug war in this country, and what Commander Mitchell re-
ferred to as far as the strategy, I think is right. Without the educa-
tional component, and without future enhancements of the educa-
tional component, it will not be focused properly. If this program
would not have come along, or its equivalent, the strategy of the
drug war, of enforcement, would not have succeeded. We would
have failed. We would have an internal Vietnam within our socie-
ty, without this educational component.

Your bill that has passed through the House and now goes to the
Senatethe $15 millionis but a first step in what I see as a suc-
cessful monetary enhancement to this most successful program.
You mentioned $3600 for a police officer in the state of Washing-
ton. In my county, in my department, the average cost is $60,000
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per officer. My commitment is five officers, or $300,000. That is a
large commitment for a department of 150 personnel.

We cover every school district within Snohomish County. That is
with the cooperation of the surrounding municipalities. Si every
school district is covered. But, to do that is a large commitment
upon government, and to make that successful. We do not get any
help from the school districts, only small help and monetary assist-
ance from our business community, which is deeply apprec iated.

But so far the cost is borne mostly by government. And, it is a
cost with which I have no problem, because, again it is the most
successful program in which I have ever been involved. But, as
Paul Dziedzic and Dr lukin have stated, this is but a part of a com-
munity partnership. If we are going to save our country, and I sin-
cerely believe we are, DARE is but a start of getting communities
and parents back together with our most vital element, our chil-
dren. Forming them into positive, responsible citizens for our
future.

I think as a national defense strategy, DARE, and positive, re-
sponsible parenting, is far more important than spending billions
on Stealth bombers or whatever Defense Department commitments
we are making yearly. If DARE is a successful component in bring-
ing the communities back together, bringing parents back into the
schools, having parents talk to, listen to and work with their chil-
dren, make them feel loved, make them feel that they are very im-
portantthat they are worthwhile citizens as we say in DARE
then we are going to succeed as a society.

And again, I laud Los Angeles for what they have started. Be-
cause I see this in our community, because I go to every graduation
that I can attend. And, I go to the schools and I see the officers
working with the students. This has brought a togetherness that I
have never seen before.

My officers come up to me and say, you know, Sheriff, I was not
for this program when it first started, but when kids walk out of
apartment buildings, or when I go to a complaint, and they say, do
you know DARE officer, so and so? Well, he is my DARE officer;
she is my DARE officer. Boy, she is great, or he is great. And, now
they like me too. They come up and ask me for assistance.

We were not seeing this before. There was a separation between
the communities and our law enforcement officers. The respect
that we did not have, that we are regaining because of DARE.

Parents are coming to these graduation exercises. We have a
community in our county that is Granite Falls. It is a logging com-
munity. It has a lot of drug and alcohol problems, as well as child
abuse problems and unemployment. When our officer went up
there, I thought, well, we are going to have a tough time in this
district. And when it finally came to graduation, I thought, well, if
we have half a dozen, maybe 20 or 30 parents show up, that will be
great. The success we have seen in that school district because of
DARE, the bringing together of every parent that has a student in
that program is overwhelming. And, again, that is what DARE has
done.

And, really, Congressmen, the DARE officers that we have
present today, they are the real heroes. They are compassionate,
empathetic, caring people who carry the message of love and re-
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sponsibility and self-esteem and understanding to these kids; pro-
vide goals and objectives for them for their future. They are just
doing an outstanding job, and I cannot say enough for the positive
things that they are doing.

Finally, in our county, when Paul Dziedzic referred to communi-
ty mobilization, we have 14 community task forces in our county.
All of them are working to bring together the components that he
referred to to make our county a success. And I think we are doing
a tremendous job on that. But, unlike Los Angeles County, or Los
Angeles Police Department and the Unified School District there,
where they have DARE K through 12, we do not have that luxury
in the state of Washington.

And, in our Sheriff's office in Snohomish County and in most of
our schools, we have K through seven, eight and nine. But we do
not have the high school component, because we do not have the
menetary resources to do so at this time. That is badly needed. The
reaffirmation and the follow up programs are badly needed to
carry this program, that reinforcement, through those students and
with those students K through 12. So, that they can carry on that
reinforcement and that positive attitude into their adulthood. That
is extremely important, and this money will go toward doing that.

But, I suggest that again, this is but a first step, that $15 million.
It needs to be expanded. When we think of there now being 50
states involved, as well as 7,000 police officers. that is a huge, huge
commitment. And, of your drug strategy at the National level, I
sincerely beliwt the educational component as well as treatment,
needs to be expanded. Because if we can save these people before
they get into the programs, and if they, unfortunately, do get into
drug involvement, help them with treatment, we are going to go a
long ways toward staving our society.

And, thank you very much for being here.
[The prepared statement of Sheriff Jim Scharf follows:]



40

EINOHOM1SPI COUNTY
ElFiLkilFPP rmE

J. I. 3cHAP V REED, Undersiwill

r.:URTH FLOOR COUNTY COURTHOUSE
hYESIA17, WASHINGTON OS2014080 (206) 344-3343

1. What the drug war means to me.

2. The stata of society in reference to parenting and the

importance of the D.A.R.E. components educationally for

not only substance abuse but responsibility, self worth,

self estkem, and establishment of goals and objectives

for the individual student.

3. The bringing together of the community as the result of

the D.A.R.E. program.

4. Community drug mobilization in Snohomish County and the

components within the county that have made drug

mobilization a county focus/success.

5. The expansion of the D.A.R.E. program and the funding

that is necessary to provide for a successful enhance-

ment program.

4 4



41

Ms. UNSOELD. Thank you. Chief Johnson?

STATEMENT OF RON JOHNSON, BATTLEGROUND POLICE CHIEF

Chief JOHNSON. Thank you. We are just starting into the DARE
program at the Battleground Police Department, and we hope to
have it effective in 91. Our officer will be going to training next
week. The reason that we decided to go with that, is that we real-
ized that we have drug problems. And, I think everybody in the
United States that cares to honestly examine things will admit
that there is a problem with drugs.

There is every type of enforcement available, from task forces to
eradication programs to intervention. They produce results, but the
result we are hoping to get is to curb drug use and have it less
available. And, those results, I do not think, are really being met
by that approach.

We see each year that drugs are available at a lower grade in
school. It just seems to filter on down, and, they are readily avail-
able. So, we feel we have to do something. In a department our
size, which is eight people, it is difficult to have an effective drug
enforcement program, because everybody knows who we are and
what we drive off duty, and where we live. It is a little difficult to
have an undercover operation, and I do not know how effective it
would really be.

So, in talking with the officers, we often times have the opportu-
nity, through juvenile sentenced to community service. They come
to the police department to wash cars and what not. And we let
them sit down and have coffee with us, and we talk about our prob-
lems with them. They get to know us one on one. And they change.
From the day they walk in, they are walking in like, "oh, boy I do
not want to be here." We have had so many of them say, you know,
we really changed our mind about police officers. You people do
care about us. And you care about the people with whom you deal.
All of a sudden, they seem to trust us, and they will open up and
talk about their problems.

That is coured with the fact that education is probably the most
effective way of dealing with any type of problem. For instance, my
folks did not wear seat belts and do not, unless I am with them. In
my police career, I started off not wearing seat belts. Then the law
became a law, and I decided to start wearing them. And, as I
learned more about them, I began wearing them, My children will
not let you start your car without your seat belt being on. So we
can see the educational process.

Combining these two facts, in our department, we have said,
"gee, it is obvious we need to develop or have a program where an
officer goes into the school, gets to know the children, develops a
relationship with them and then teach them about drugs and skills
of saying no." Obviously, that is the DARE program.

In researching it a little hit, I talked to a lot of school adminis-
trators, school teachers, police chiefs and sheriffs. And, with every-
body I have talked to, I have yet to find a critic of the DARE pro-
gram. Anybody that has been around it and exposed to it, is
waving the banner. I mean, they are up on a soap box. It is just
overwhelming.
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Some of the stories that come out about the kids that have been
helped, and the great strides, are just tremendous. That is why we
have decided to go with the DARE program.

We do not have funds to replace the officer. We are taking one
person out of eight of our department, and putting them into the
DARE program, because we feel it is that important. It is going to
put a strain on our abilities to perform our other duties, but we are
going to do it. I just feel that strongly about it.

I would like to comment, too, about Congressman Kildee's re-
marks about the after school program, because I am involved in a
community education program in coaching. I coach two sports. Just
as a remark, one in basketball, in the Battleground School District,
over 800 students participated in an after school program. Our
practice in summer is 7:30 to 8:30 at night. I think it tells us that
kids are looking for something positive to do, and when we offer it,
they will respond. I just really want to emphasize the importance, I
think, of having something in the school district, or something for
every child, whether that be sports, or some other form of extracur-
ricular activity, to make them feel a part of it. I think that is ex-
tremely important. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Chief Ron Johnson follows:]
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SEPTEMBER 6, 1990

REMARKS BY BATTLE GROUND POLICE CHIEF RON JOHNSON ABOUT THE DARE
PROGRAM.

ONLY THE MOST NAIVE PEOPLE DO NOT RECOGNIZE THE OVERWHELMING
PROBLEM CAUSED BY DRUG ABUSE IN THIS COUNTRY. WE HAVE SEEN ILLICIT
DRUGS APPEAR IN LOWER GRADES AT SCHOOL EVERY YEAR AND THEY HAVE
BECOME MORE READILY AVAILABLE. IN RESPONSE TO THE DRUG PROBLEM WE
HAVE DEVOTED UNTOLD RESOURCES TO ENFORCING THE LAWS AGAINST ILLICIT
DRUGS. IF WE ARE TO HONESTLY GRADE THE EFFECT OF THAT EFFORT I FEEL
WE WOULD HAVE TO ADMIT IT HAS BEEN LESS THAN SUCCESSFUL. WHILE
THERE HAS BEEN NUMEROUS SUCCESSFUL TASK FORCE OPERATIONS,
ERADICATION PROGRAMS, AND MANY OTHER TYPES OF ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMS,
THEY HAVE DONE LITTLE TO STOP THE USE OF OR CURB THE AVAILABILITY
OF ILLICIT DRUGS. I THINK A STRONG ENFORCEMENT STANCE WILL ALWAYS
BEA NECESSARY INGREDIENT OF A SUCCESSFUL ANTI-DRUG PROGRAM, BUT IT
MUST BE RECOGNIZED THAT IT CANNOT BE THE MAIN FOCUS.
LOOKING FOR OTHER SOLUTIONS WE CAN DRAW ON OUR EXPERIENCE, MANY OF
US HAVE SEEN THE RESULT OF BEING ABLE TO WORK ONE ON ONE WITH A
YOUNG PERSON, WHEN THEY REALIZE WE CAN BE THEIR FRIEND AND WE DO
CARE ABOUT THEM THEY LEARN IT IS NOT THEM AGAINST US AND A
RELATIONSHIP DEVELOPS WHERE WE ARE ABLE TO HELP THAT YOUNG PERSON
DEAL WITH THEIR PROBLEMS BECAUSE THEY KNOW WE ARE TRULY INTERESTED
IN THEIR WELL BEING AND THEY BEGIN TO TRUST OUR JUDGEMENT AND
ADVICE. THAT FACT COUPLED WITH THE KNOWLEDGE THAT EDUCATION
ACHIEVES RESULTS THAT ARE FAR REACHING LEADS US TO THE cONCLUSION
THAT WE SHOULD BE IMPLEMENTING A PROGRAM WITHIN THE POLICE
DEPARTMENTS THAT BUILDS TRUST BETWEEN THE STUDENTS AND A POLICE
OFFICER WHO THEN EDUCATES THEM ABOUT DRUGS AND TEACHES THEM HOW TO
RESIST THE ABUSE OF DRUGS. THIS IS THE DARE PROGRAM.
THE BATTLE GROUND POLICE DEPARTMENT WILL BE STARTING THE DARE
PROGRAM IN 1991. WE HAVE COMMITTED TO IT EVEN THOUGH IT WILL PUT A
STRAIN ON OUR RESOURCES BECAUSE WE KNOW IT TO BE A VALUABLE
PROGRAM, CHILDREN WHO LEARN HOW TO RESIST DRUGS TODAY WILL CARRY
THAT TO ADULTHOOD AND WILL IN TURN EDUCATE THEIR CHILDREN. I HAVE
SPOKEN TO MANY POLICE CHIEFS, SHERIFFS, SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS, AND
DARE OFFICERS IN RESEARCHING THE DARE PROGRAM, I HAVE YET TO FIND
A CRITIC, THOSE WHO HAVE BEEN INVOLVED WITH THE PROGRAM AND HAVE
WITNESSED IT'S RESULTS BECOME AVID SUPPORTERS OF THE PROGRAM AND
STORIES OF CHILDREN BEING HELPED BY THE PROGRAM ARE TOLD BY
EVERYONE WHO HAS BEEN AROUND IT. I SINCERELY FEEL THE DARE PROGRAM
IS ONE OF THE BEST WAYS WE HAVE AVAILABLE TO US TO FIGHT THE WAR ON
DRUG ABUSE AND MONEY SPENT ON THE DARE PROGRAM IS ONE OF THE BEST
INVESTMENTS WE CAN MAKE.
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MS. UNSOELD. Mr. Kildee.
Mr. KILDEE. One of the advantages of serving in Congress and

having hearings like this is you get a good education. We are con-
stantly learning, and I have learned a lot here today.

When I taught school, I tried to respect the dignity of my stu-
dents. I probably came in contact with several thousands of stu-
dents in the ten years in which I taught high school. I tried to re-
spect their dignity. I was put to a test at times, but I always tried
to respect their worth and respect their dignity.

And, I can recall when I mentioned earlier Sergeant Wilbur
LaGree, who used to come to my classroom starting in the first
grade. I could tell that he liked us, that he liked me. That was very
important.

In your training program, do you get into how your officers, your
DARE officers will relate to students in that program? How do you
do that?

Sheriff SCHARF. Well, Dr. Lukin is more involved with the train-
ing, but let me answer from my perspective, from selection of our
officers. We, in our department, ask for those officers who are in-
terested in becoming DARE officers. And, then when we get those
people who volunteer, after we look over their qualifications, then
we let the community pick out of those prospective candidates who
they want to be their DARE officers. We get the community in-
volved.

We utilize the Maryhill School District from my department, and
the Mukilteo School District. We have the officers go in and
present an agenda to a classroom, see how they relate to the stu-
dents. The teachers grade them. And, they have to give a presenta-
tion before a community groupa Rotary Club, or a Kiwanis group
and see how they come across verbally. And, they have an inter-
view in-house, with some community people, principals, business
leaders and so forth.

So the community selects our officers. And so far, they have just
done an excellent job. And, for the most part, the communities that
are represented here today do very similar selection processes.

In addition, in the training program, which has come from Los
Angeles the attributes that we want for a classroom teacher,
whethe it be a DARE officer or a regular teacher are carried
through within the period of time they are training.

But, I think the key is those officers that come forward and want
to be DARE officers, do so from the heart. And they have a lot of
common sense. They are able to relate to and listen to children and
learn from them, as well as teach them. I think the kids pick that
up right away and respect them.

Mr. KUM& You really put your finger on something very impor-
tant. Any teacher who does not learn from his students is not a
very good teacher. I learned a great deal. I think that is very im-
portant.

Sheriff SCHARF. I think, Congressman, once some of these DARE
officers come up here and speak to you, you will see right away
how they can relate to not only kids but to people in general, and
how wonderfully effective they are.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much.
MS. UNSOELD. Did you want to comment on the question, too?

,
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Chief JOHNSON. Well, I am not with the DARE training itself; I
cannot answer that directly as to how they do that. I know that in
picking our officer, I picked an officer that has in the past had a
desire to go to the schools and talk to the children, teach them
about different aspects, safety and drugs and has a genuine desire.
He has to be around them. And, that caring, I think, comes
through.

He is an opposing coach also in programs, and I have watched
him. We always look for something positive. You know, if they
miss the lay-in, we comment that they dribbledthat their ap-
proach was great, even though the basket did not go in. And, I
have seen him do those things, and so did point out the positive,
something positive about the students, and the genuine caring
comes across. I think that is how we build that.

MS. UNSOELD. What are the necessary ingredients, or relation-
ships, between schools, law enforcement and the community, in
order to have the program take hold or work?

Sheriff SCHARF. From my perspective, I feel that the superintend-
ents and representatives of school boards have to get a feeling and
understanding from the law enforcement administrator that he or
she definitely cares about and wants to provide the program to
them.

I recall talking to Dr. Jim Shumack in the Mukilteo School Dis-
trict when I first presented DARE to the Mukilteo Youth at Risk
Coalition. He sat back in his chair and went, "humph, more prob-
lems with my curriculum, where am I going to get the time?" And,
he was very, very negative. Well, after the first graduation, he got
up and saidhe turned to me and said, "Sheriff Scharf, I apologize.
This is the most effective program we have ever had in our educa-
tional system. And, I do not think this will ever go away."

I think it is a commitment; people who have been working with
people for a long period of time can tell the phonies right away.
When somebody is committed to a program and not just providing
it just to be there, you understand right away. That comes across
very clearly. I have nothing but respect for the superintendents in
our county, because they are totally committed to this program and
believe in it and support it totally. Their respective school boards
do also, and the parents follow through with that.

So I think it is commitment from both parts.
Chief JOHNSON. We are also going to try to involve the communi-

ty in it, and in fact we have several people who have agreed to act
as chairmen for fund-raising and to involve the community, so it
will not be the police department going out and saying, "Gee, you
should support this program we are doing." It is going to have citi-
zens going out and saying, "There is a good program going on be-
tween the police and the 3chools to help us with our drug problems.
And, we as citizens want to help them." So, I think it pulls all
three together into the program.

MS. UNSOELD. I want to talk about the money part of it a bit.
From your community's standpoint, hat is it that convinces you
that it is worthwhile to make that taxpayer dollar investment in
this type of program? Help us get the ammunition so that we can
help you in the long run. What is it that convinced you?
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Sheriff SCHARF. There are not enough dollars, there are not
enough law enforcement officers available to us in this country to
stop drugs as we were trying to, prior to educational programs such
as DARE. We were not going to be successful; we were going to fail
without this type of program.

We have to stop the demand. The demand will be stopped
through education and understanding of what not only drugs but
alcohol can 'do to you long-term. And, that is what DARE does.

You know, arresting people over and over again, putting them
into the jail, crowding the jails, just does not do it. Because they do
not learn a thing from it. They must learn responsibility and self-
esteem. I know all my DARE officers have the kids say, before they
leave the graduation exercise, the little phrase, "Whatever you say
or do to me, I know I'm a worthwhile person." For me, that is the
whole key right there.

Chief JOHNSON. I think in talking with parents, probably if there
is one thing that we as a police department could do for them to
help their child, that they could handle it if their child stole some
minor article or if he got a speeding ticket, or something, they can
deal with that. If they had one wish it would be, keep my kid off
drugs. And, to do that, for us to think we could arrest every pusher
that comes inwell, maybe we could. If we could, there would be
two more for every one tomorrow, because there is just too much
money there, the profitability. And, it is just not that effective.

But, to work towards that goal, the most effective spending of
our dollars is to teach the kids not to want the drug. That is what
it comes down to.

Ms. UNSOELD. Good. We will carry that one back with us too.
Thank you, both of you. Now we will have our DARE officers, our
real heroes. Colonel Jim Partin and Lieutenant Steve Nelson, from
the Olympia Police Department, and Sergeant Roger Kessel, from
Clark County.

Yes, these are the real heroes. We are very pleased to have you. I
do want to reiterate for our audience outside this room that there
were teachers who also wanted to come and put in a good word,
but today was too important to be away, being the first week at
school.

So, who would like to start off?
Mr. NELSON. I suppose, perhaps, I will.
Ms. UNSOELD. All right, good.

STATEMENT OF STEVE NELSON, OLYMPIA POLICE DEPARTMENT

Mr. NELSON. First, thank you for inviting us up and giving us
this opportunity to share. I think we need to talk about some of
our classroom experiences really briefly, about what has happened.

First, this is the fourth year of the DARE program in Olympia. It
has spread like wildfire. We started providing the program in the
fifth grade, the last year of elementary school. We have been very
successful with that. Within two years, we were getting pressure
positive pressure--from the parents, from the PTAs, from the
school board, that, boy, this is great, but how about an eighth grade
program, right before kids go into high school? Because we are
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really worried about them, and they see a lot of pressures for drugs
then.

So, we were able to do that. We started a pilot program two
years ago. I was the eighth grade instructor last year. And, guess
what we have now? It is pressure for a high school program. We
were selected by the State Training Commission to pilot the high
school curriculum. So, every time we jump another grade, we basi-
cally add another 700 students that we are going to impact. We
have to get the manpower, we have to get the time and all the re-
sources. And, we made a commitment to do the best we could with
it, but it is straining the resources that we do have with an ever
expanding program.

One of my experiences that I had in the eighth grade, I will just
share with you briefly, was one of the things we attacked are gate-
way drugs. And, we include marijuana, alcohol and tobacco.

Now, the schools over the years have done a really good job edu-
cating kids about those things. And, they have talked a lot about
tobacco. One thing I think the police can bring in, when I talk
about cigarettes, I share my experiences with them. And here is
what I tell the students in the eighth grade.

I said I have arrested a lot of people for smoking marijuana
After conducting a very unscientific study I found that everybody I
arrest for smoking marijuana also smokes cigarettes. That makes
them think for a minute. And, I will say, everybody I have ever
arrested for cocaine has smoked marijuana and has also smoked
cigarettes. Furthermore, do you know that if you smoke cigarettes
at this age, you are five times more likely to get involved in mari-
juana?

Then you see those little lights going on. They have heard about
cigarettes for years. But, suddenly they are listening to me a little
bit differently. Last year, at the lunch breaks that I stayed at, at
the nutrition breaks that I hung around at, I had 11 students come
up to me individually with the old "I smoke cigarettes and can you
help me quit?" I count that as a real success.

What I was able to do was get the school counselors involved,
and get these young kids into a program to quit smoking. I feel
that that was real successful, and that is worth it to me.

The last thing I do is an evaluation at the end of my program. I
had one of the girls tell me that what she learned in DARE was
that she felt she could tell her older boyfriend, who is in high
school, that she does not want to hear his stories about when he
goes out and gets drunk. She does not like to hear that anymore.
And, she said he quit doing it. I think that is what the whole pro-
gram is about, is to get them out and to do those things.

So we are firmly behind our program, but it is an ever increasing
commitment. We are in it, though, for the long run, and will do the
best we can. Thank you.

Colonel PARTIN. Well, I guess I will go next.
MS. UNSOELD. Okay.

rI I
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STATEMENT OF COLONEL JIM PARTIN, OLYMPIA POLICE
DEPARTMENT

Colonel PARTIN. I also teach DARE in Olympia, and I am the of-
ficer that has been teaching the fifth grade program. That is the
highest grade in our elementary schools. As I was sitting here lis-
tening to some of the people, there were just a few points that I
wanted to make. And I started my list, and it has gotten bigger and
bigger as I have gone along.

But I want to start at the beginning of it a little bit, as a DARE
officer, and some of the things that we try to get across to our
youth. One of them is, when we define a drug in DARE, a drug is
anything other than food that affects your mind or your body.
Sure, we talk about alcohol, we talk about the illicit drugs. But, we
are also talking about prescription drugs and over-the-counter
drugs that are also sometimes abused.

We try to give the young peop'e a good understanding that those
drugs can be very dangerous also. It is just the wrong use. That is
what abuse is, the wrong use of something. So, it covers that aspect
also.

We talk about nicotine and caffeine also, as drugs. And, you can
really see the kids starting to look at the whole picture of what is a
drug, and what do I put into my body. That is part of what we are
trying to teach the kids.

As a DARE officer, and as we are taught in Dr. Lukin's classes,
it is to elicit response from students. It is not a lecture atmosphere.
We are trying to learn from them also. And we are trying to get
them to teach the other students things in there. When we ask
questions in class, it is typical to have half, if not three-quarters, of
the whole class raise their hands and want to participate. We are
constantly asking the kids to sit back down in their chairs. They
are jumping out of their chairs to answer questions. This is great
enthusiasm.

We try to show them that we have a lot of energy and interest in
them and enthusiasm for staying away from drugs. And in turn we
get that right back from them. We have had lots of teachers com-
ment on that, and it is very, very positive.

And in our lessons, it has been mentioned a couple of times, they
truly are what are called life skills. It is not just drugs that we are
teaching them about, but it is everything in their lives. HJW do
they interact with morn and dad? How do you give one another
compliments? How do you make yourself feel good; how do you
make other people feel good, in your family, with your friends?

And, in that, try to emphasize, too, friendship. What truly is a
friendship? Is a friend somebody who comes along and offers you a
drug and says, "Hey, come on, let's smoke cigarettes?" Is that
really your friend? They know that if they are offered a drug some-
day, it is probably going to be from somebody they know, right
next to them. It is not going to be a stranger. It could be the person
next door, the high school student across the street. It could be
their best friend that comes into their house when mom and dad
are gone. I think that is really important, to understand truly what
a friendship is.
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Do young people just let their friends go off and get involved
with drugs and not try to help them? We try to teach them that.
That is what I think are really life skills. Sure, they can under-
stand about drugs. But, we address crime, shoplifting, all of those
areas are mentioned in it also. I think that is really important too.

You talk about the support that we get in our communities. I
have had parents show up for every class-17 classes with their
student, with their son or daughter. They will sit right next to
them, and they want their mom or dad to be there. I had a lady at
one of my elementary schools this last year, at Pine Deer Elemen-
tary. She even, in keeping with the colors of DARE, red and black,
went out and bought a red and black polka dotted dress, and then
some other outfits. She was in red and black every day. All the stu-
dents thought that was wonderful, and she was really supporting
it.

We are not teaching things to kids that are different than what
their parents would be trying to teach them. It has been mentioned
that parents, a lot of them are both working now. We are trying to
teach them just those same kinds of skills that mom and dad would
like to have taught to them, too. We support mom and dad, I think,
very well in the program.

There has been mention of cost, too, and how much money and
things. If you get down to the actual cost per, or how manyI
should, let us look at it this wayhow many students a DARE offi-
cer can reach, one DARE officer per year, in a school year, in this
nine-month period. They teach, ideally, four classes per day and
four days a week. So, they can reach 1,000 students every school
year. That is just with the core curriculum in fifth grade, the 17
weeks.

Plus, they have the other visitation with the younger students,
also. If you look at it that way, in dollars and cents, I think you
would find that DARE is very, very cost effective. It takes one offi-
cer, the student notebooks, and that is alland a commitment
from the school district to do it. If you look at it that way, I feel it
is very effective. I think that is important to mention.

I feel like we are not in competition with the other drug pro-
grams and other programs that are in our communities or in our
schools. In our district, for example, we have a program in elemen-
tary school called "Here's Looking at You, 2000." It is taught by
the teachers. They feel in our district, the teachers as well as the
administrators, that that program, along with DARE, compliment
each other. It is the same signal.

"Here's Looking at You, 2000" is presented by a teacher, then we
have DARE come in at fifth grade, taught by an officer. Then, in
middle school, they have the Quest program, which is taught by
teachers also. It is the same type of thing. And, then, again, we
have the officer coming in, Lt. Nelson, at eighth grade. So, they are
seeing the same kind of messages, but they are coming from differ-
ent people throughout the community. I think that is important for
them. But it is definitely not in competition with each other, I do
not feel.

We also cover private schools. There is a growing number of pri-
vate schools throughout the entire nation, and they are being
picked up in this program. We teach all of our private schools, and
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I think most of the areas do, also. I know in Los Angeles they do
the same thing. So it is covering those students also, which I think
is important.

The DARE officers, themselves, some people say, well, the DARE
officers are kind of the heroes of this. I do not really see us in that
way. I think most people, when they get into police work, are very
idealistic, and they think they are going to be able to go out and
stop crime. Literally, single handedly, and on their beat, they are
going to stop crime.

After a few years, you realize that is not going to happen. It has
been mentioned about the legal system and the jails and things.
But, then, when DARE officers are sent off to DARE training, and
they get an introductory speech by Dr. Lukin about what DARE is
all about, everybody starts thinking, hey, maybe this is just what I
thought police work should be about when I started.

That is been the way it has been for me. It is the most effective
thing I have ever seen, and I think you would find all of the offi-
cers saying the same thing. We can reach a tremendous number of
people in our community very easily and very cost effectively this
way.

We have had, again, officers in our department who want foot-
ball cards, for example, so they can hand out, because a lot of kids
come up to them, like has been explained earlier, and it has been
very positive that way. But I think it is just officers taking advan-
tage of a situation they have seen, and they think, boy, this is
great. I can make a difference, along with support from our com-
munity. I think we all do care very much. I will finish with that.

[The prepared statement of Colonel Jim Partin follows]
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In January 1983 the Los Angeles Pollee Department and the Los Angeles Unified School
District combined in establiehing an antidrug education program in the elementary
schools. It was agreed that a cooperative effort by the police and educators was needed
to fight the growing preblice of drug abuse in school age ohildren. Experts in the
educational and medical fields have come to the oonolusion thet substance abuse
education and prevention must begin before individuals become involved with those
substances. Mecause tha goal of prevention requires an attitudinal change in students ,
the traditional approach of teaching substance identification and emphasizing the
dangers of abuse Was abandoned. A currioulum which addresses value decision., self-
coacept improvement, respect for the law, and p. -aistancts training was developed
instead. The purpose of the curricolum is to pro 3hildran with the knowledge and
the ability to say no to substance abuse and not 13. ..41Uanoed by peer pressurewhieh
they enoounter. The prevention curriculum is presented to children in grindes five or
six who are ideally suited for this type of training as they have not yet entered into the
Junior or senior high social environment wherein peer pressure is highly utilised. The
gcal of this progrem which was named Project D.A.R.E. (Drug Abuas Resistance
Education) is the reduction of substance abuse in schcolage children. The benefits of
reaching this goal are priestess, not only for todey, but also for the future where
children assume their roles as productive citizens and leaders.

Here in Olympia we adopted Tbe DARE concept in full. Protect DAZE La a joint program
of the Olympia School District and the Olympia Polioe Department to prevent substance
abuse among our youth . The School District'sprofessional staff reviewed and apprcead
the curriculum and focus of the DARE Program. A five-year commitment wee made to
offer the DARE Program as an integral part of all fifth grade classroom course work.
The emphasis of DARE is to help students recognise and resist the many pressures that
influence them to experiment with alcohol, marijuana and other drugs. Within the
lessons, the students will be introduced to many new words eucth as consequences and
self-esteem. The overall lessen pan focuses on feelings related to selt-esteem,
interpersonal and communication skills, decision making, and positive alternatives to
drug abuse behavior. The program offers a variety of classroom activities designed to
encourage student generated responses tc problem solving situations. The ottrricul 1m

La deeigned to be taught for one haur per week for seventeen consecutive week; in
every fifth gzeds class by a uniformed police officer to achieve the goals of this

curriculum.

Just as important as tha need for clarification of the pregrem content, is to explain the
support bee, a( the DARE Prom, In Olympia, DARE ie unique in that the program
is fully supported through k,cel buithasees and service clubs such as Gannett
Foundation, McDonald's, Heritage Federal Savings and Lean, Sunset Life Insurance,
James W. Hodges Realtors, Rotary of Olympia, Twin County Credit Union, Republic
Leasing, Black Mins Community Hospital and the Hospital Employee Guild, Moons Ford,
and Puget Sound National Bank. Witheut them, the DARE Program would need to
compete for tax dollars through the City's General Fund. These organizations decided
to bet on the future by supporting the young people of this community. These
organizations are to hf congratulated.

Prior to entering the classroom, each of the officers participated in an eighty-hour
trsining course which included curriculum on teaching techniques as well as alimentary
school operations, preparation of visual aids, officer-school relationships, development
of self-esteem, peer pressure resistance techniques, narcotic rsoognition,
communication skills, child development, and classroom evaluation.. These officer. ere
not in the schools for enforcement soden but rather for teaching and instruction of this
curricUlum to the students.

Since the inception of the program, DARE has proven results in teaching life
skills to our youth, This along with overwhelming support and continued growth
show the program ia meeting the need. However, it is unfortunate that many
young people across the country do not receive the DARE program because of
financial consideration. This program needs strong financial suppnrt ao every
child across the United States has an opportunity to learn and us is skills of
DARE.
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MS. UNSOELD. Thank you. Sergeant Kessel.

STATEMENT OF SERGEANT ROGER KESSEL, CLARK COUNTY
SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Sergeant KESSEL. I would like to thank you for this opportunity
to address a Congressional hearing regarding the Drug Abuse Re-
sistance Education program.

The Clark County Sheriff's Office became actively involved in
the DARE program in September, 1989, with the training of
Deputy Don Kerr and myself as DARE instructors. A DARE pilot
program was then instituted in seven Clark County elementary
schools, beginning in January, 1990.

We entered the DARE program with high expectations and
quickly found that the acceptance, enthusiasm, and effectiveness of
DARE far exceeded anything we had anticipated. DARE immedi-
ately gained the praise and support of school personnel, parents,
the community, and most importantly, the children themselves.

DARE's popularity and effectiveness is not by chance. The cur-
riculum is written in a manner that not only relays the desired in-
formation to the students, but also makes the learning fun. The
DARE instructors class not only provides DARE instructors with
the skill and knowledge to teach DARE, it also impresses them
with the importance of the responsibility they have undertaken.
The success of their DARE program becomes a matter of personal
pride.

Almost immediately upon the initiation of our DARE pilot pro-
gram, I began receiving inquiries from other schools, both in Clark
County and neighboring communities, about the expansion of our
program.

Next week the Clark County Sheriffs Office will begin its first
full school year of teaching DARE. Our program has grown from
the original pilot program of seven elementary schools to a sched-
ule of 16 elementary schools and a pilot program for two middle
schools. The current waiting list of schools who cannot be sched-
uled due to lack of funding includes six grade schools and two
middle schools.

Our programs expansion and waiting list is not due to a recruit-
ing effort. The local demand for DARE originated through a word
of mouth networking of parents and school officials. If a recruiting
effort were undertaken, I am confident demand for the program
would exist in every school in Clark County.

The only factor inhibiting further expansion of DARE in Clark
County, as I am sure is the case in many other communities, is
funding for personnel. In our county, the materials necessary for
teaching DARE have been purchased with funds donated to the
program by civic and community groups, grants and local business-
es. This year, three of our school districts have agreed to help with
the costs of materials. To date, we have received approximately
$30,000 in donations for materials. I believe this is indicative of the
support and enthusiasm in DARE that exists.

These donations allow us to provide a quality program to those
children we reach, but do not allow for the inclusion of more chil-
dren in this very important program.



53

Currently, the Clark County Sheriff's Office is funding one
DARE officer position through a local .02 percent sales tax in-
crease. Our other full-time DARE officer position and my half-time
teaching position were possible only by the Sheriff's re-allocation of
existing personnel. This re-allocation of personnel away from the
enforcement branch of our office is not without consequence. We,
as with many other law enforcement agencies, are faced with ever
increasing demands for our service without adequate manpower to
meet those demands. An unfortunate reality is that DARE can
exist only as long as citizen and officer safety is not compromised
due to the personnel re-allocations. I believe DARE is far too im-
portant not to have its existence guaranteed by independent fund-
ing.

Our nation has properly identified the "war on drugs" as a top
priority. Obviowly, this "war" must be fought on various fronts,
but the most productive, cost effwtive method is prevention
through education. Through DARE, children develop the desire to
say no, the skil)s to say no, and the confidence to say no. Thou-
sands of children can receive this education for a fraction of the
cost of one airplane, one radar balloon, or one more prison.

DARE provides a number of benefits secondary to drug abuse
prevention. The skills learned in DARE help children avoid in-
volvement with gangs, help them make responsible decisions, and
develop respect for others. DARE returns the law enforcement offi-
cer to the community as the most visible, approachable representa-
tive of our government. The local police officer is seen as a caring
human being concerned with the welfare and quality of life of the
people he or she serves.

The program has been proven, the instruction is available, the
public demand is present. The missing component is the most
common one, funding. By funding DARE, the Federal Government
can bring the war on drugs to the homes of America in a highly
visible, effective, humane manner. Our children are looking to all
of us for guidance to avoid becoming a "casualty" of the war.
DARE provides that guidance.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Sergeant Roger Kessel followsl



54

TESTIMONY OF SERGEANT ROGER A KESSEL
SUPERVISOR OF THE DARE. UNIT
CLARK COUNTY SHERIFF OFFICE

FOR

CONGRESSMAN KILDEE AND CONGRESSWOMAN UNSOELD
COMMFTTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR

OVERSIGHT HEARING

DRUG ABUSE EDUCATION PROGRAMS

I would like to thank you for this opportunity to address the congressional
hearing regarding the DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION (DARE.)

program.
The Clark County Sheriff's Office became actively involved in the DARE.

prograin in September 1989 with the training of Deputy Don Kerr and myself as
DARE. Instructors. A DARE. pilot program was then instituted in seven (7)
Clark County elementary schools beginning in January 1990.

We entered the DARE. program with high expectations and quickly fotind

that the acceptance, enthusiasm, and effectiveness of DARE. far exceeded
anything we could have anticipated. DARE. immediately gained the praise and
support of school personnel, parents, the community, and most importantly the
children.

D.A.R.E.'s popularity and effectiveness is not by chance. The curriculum is
written in a manner that not only relays the desired information to the students but
also makes the learning fun. The DARE instructors class not only provides
DARE. instructors with the skill and knowledge to teach DARE. it also
impresses them with the importance of the responsibility they have undertaken.
The success of their DARE. program becomes a matter of personal pride.

Almost immediately upon the initiation of our DARE. pilot program I
began receiving inquiries from other schools, both in Clark County and neighboring
communities, about expansion of the program.

Next week the Clark County Sher fra Office will begin it's first full school
year of teaching DARE. Our program has grown from the original pilot program

of seven (7) elementary schools to a schedule of sixteen (16) elementary schools and
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a pilot program for two (2) middle schools. The current waiting list of schools who
cannot be scheduled due ta lack of funding, includes six (6) grade schools and (2)

middle schools.
Our programs expansion and waiting list is not due ta a recruiting effort.

The local demand for D.A.RE. originated through a word of mouth networking of
parents and school officials. If a recruiting effort were undertaken, I am confident
demand for the program would exist in every school in Clark County.

The only factor inhibiting further expansion of DARE. in Clark County, as
I am sure is the case in many other communities, ia funding for personnel. In our
county the materials necessary for teaching D.A.R.E. have been purchased with
funds donated to the program by local businesses, civic and community groups, and
grants. This year three (3) of our school districts have agreed to help with the costs
of materials. To date we have received approximately $30,000 in donations for
materials. I believe this is indicative of the support and enthusiasm in D.A.RE. that

exists.
These donations allow us to provide a quality program to those children we

reach, but do not allow for the inclusion of more children in this very important
program.

Currently the Clark County Sheriff's Office is funding one (1) D.A.R.E.
officer position through a local .02% sales tax increase. Our other full-time
DARE. officer position and my 1/2 time teaching position were possible only by
the Sheriff's re-allocation of existing personnel. The re-allocation of personnel away
from the enforcement branf,h of our office is not without consequence. We, as with
many other law enforcemait agencies, are faced with ever increasing demands for
our service without adequate manpower to meet those demands. An unfortunate
reality is DARE. can exist only as long as citizen and officer safety in not
compromised due to the personnel re-allocations. I believe DARE. is far too
important to not have it's existence guaranteed by independent funding.

Our nation has properly identified the "war on drupe as a top priority.
Obviously this "war" must be fought on various fronts but the most productive, cost
effective method is prevention through education. Through DARE. children
develop the desire to say no, the skills to say no, and the confidence to say no.
Thousands of children can receive this education for a fraction of the cost of 1
airplane, 1 radar balloon, or 1 prison.

DARE. provides a number of benefits secondary to drug abuse prevention.
The skills learned in D.A.RE. help children avoid involvement with gangs, make
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responsible decisione, and develop respect for others. DAR.R. returns the law
enforcement officer to the community as the most visible, approachable,
representative of our government. The local police officer is seen as a caring human
being concerned the welfare and quality of life of the people he or she serves.

The program has been proven, the instruction is available, the public demand
is present The missing component is the most common one, funding. By funding
DARE. the Federal Government can bring the war on drugs to the homes of
America in a highly visible, effective, humane manner. Our children are looking to
all of us for guidance to avoid becoming a ''casualty" of the war. D.A.R.E. provides
that guidance.

Thank you.

C
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Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much for your testimony, and thank
you, Madame Chair. I am catching a plane back to Michigan. And,
by the way, I cancelled some very important engagements to come
out here for this hearing because nothing has been more important
this week than this. I really thank you for holding this hearing. We
have to have it in our head and our heart, both, when we go back
to Washington to advocate a program like this. I was an advocate
before, but I will be even a more vigorous advocate now. This is
really impressive.

I have great respect for our people involved in law enforcement.
And, you, probably more than any people, have seen such a change
taking place in law enforcement. You have new challenges out
there, new approaches to these challenges. And, this is really a tre-
mendous ,:pproach. I think you should try to replicate it through-
out the country. The Federal Government, in its prioritieswe
have a shortage of money, but we also have to set up our priorities
right. And, I think this is a very, very high priority. There are
other things that we can let go, and put our assets here.

Just let me ask you one question, and I think the car is waiting
for me.

Ms. UNSOELD. Oh, you have five minutes.
Mr. KILDEE. Okay, to get out to the airport. DARE does take time

away from some of your more traditional law enforcement activi-
ties. But, does DARE help you become more effective law enforce-
ment officers, say, in other areas of your profession? Does it have
some spill over effect, by your DARE activities, you have better
contacts in the community, maybe a better understanding of the
community, where you are better law officers there?

Mr. NELSON. I would look, to myself, personally, that it certainly
has. It is kind of a joke around our police station, you know, when
we go to staff meetings now, they say I talk differently since I have
become a DARE officer. I also communicate at, I think, a much
better basic level. I am more candid. And, work with self esteem. I
use the tricks that I use with the kids in school on the officers now.

But, yes, it has made me more effective, and it has been noticea-
ble to a lot of people. It just improves all of our communication
skills, and, what is important, it has been really good for me.

Colonel PARTIN. Yeah. I would have to say the same thing. We
just went through a little selection process yesterday for promo-
tional things that were in our department. And, as a DARE officer,
being away from the street, I did not know if that was going to
hurt me or not. But, the supervisors evaluated our ability to com-
municate with people, whether they are young people, people we
deal with on the streets, or business people, whatever, and they felt
I had the ability to do that.

So, I think it does help a lot. We are finding a lot of DARE offi-
cers are being promoted across our state. I know Dr. Lukin is con-
tinually looking for officers to train other officers, and he keeps
losing them, because they end up getting promoted. So, it truly
does help that way. But, I hopeI think it is opening up other
areas for officers on the street. Young kids will come up and tell
them if they have seen something that has happened, or if they are
asked questions, you know, "Did you see anything?" people are

C
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more willing to talk to them, because they had that exposure to an
officer for 17 weeks in a classroom.

Sergeant KESSEL. I would have to agree with both of them. I
think it not only improves the communication skillsthat shows,
obviouslyof DARE officers through their public speaking, but I
think that also DARE is also the most perfect component in my
mind. Everybody is talking community oriented police, community
based police. Whatever a person wants to call it, it is a beautiful
example of the law enforcement officer truly becoming a member
of the community.

The kids, the parents, the schoolit is a perfect set up. And, we
get the information more readily from people living in that com-
munity, because we have shown them that we do care. We are
there for more than just taking people to jail.

Ms. UNSOELD. Let me ask a hard question here. Have any of you
had to bust someone that you had go through one of your classes?

Mr. NELSON. I personally have not. I have seen a couple in our
booking room. In fact, just two days ago, I did one, and it was a girl
I had in eighth grade, who was a runaway. And, what it did, is the
second she saw me, she did the old cover her face trick. I walked
up to her. I sat down and talked to her, took her in and bought her
a Coke, and had a good rapport with her, and talked with her
about her family problem that brought her to this. I think it was a
real good experience for her and for me to be able to relate. It did
not hurt.

Ms. UNSOELD. Do you see a carryover of more respect for law en-
forcement, generally, among young people, as a result of their
having participated in these programs?

Colonel PARTIN. Oh, yeah, I do. I have had comments from
almost everybody in our patrol division who said that. From par-
ents, people in the neighborhood. I live in an area where we have
15 young boys in my little cul-de-sac. I talk to all of them and they
are very open with me. They know I am a policeman and what I
do. I have taught some of them in DARE. Our relationship is very
good. I think it is that way with all the DARE officers, as well as
officers throughout the whole area.

Ms. UNSOELD. I have a couple more questions that I want to ask.
But, I want to thank my colleague, here, Mr. Kildee, for coming to
hear all of you. I discovered when I got turned onto DARE that
there was a serious lacking among elected officials in understand-
ing and knowledge about the program. The downtuwn chambers of
commerce knew more about it than we did, because they had
helped fund it and helped participate. What you have done today,
all of you, is to help reinforce, to help strengthen, our ability to go
back there and fight for the program.

I should have thought bigger$15 million is not going to do it.
But, to give us that kind of ammunition, of tool, will helpthe pro-
gram to be more effective. Because we have got to have this part-
nership too. For all of the television audience out there that is
going to hear this again, it is, an opportunity for you all to get in-
volved in saying: "his is the way; this is one of the priorities for the
expenditures of our tax dollars. This is an investment in our
future: an investment in our national security: an investment in
our kids."
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That is the kind of message that I hope will also come out of this.
But, I want to thank you, and you, very, very, much, Dale. I will let
you go catch your plane now, and I will ask just a couple of more
questions here.

How much experience did you have on the street it law enforce-
ment before you got into a DARE classroom?

Mr. NELSON. Speaking for myself, I think it was 15 years.
Colon s, NRTIN. Twelve, prior to.
Sergea,t KESSEL. I had gone 13 and a half.
Ms. UNSOELD. Okay. So, you have got that wealth of experience,

to compare your effectiveness in dealing with the drug problem in
the street, as opposed to the classroom. So, what would be your ad-
ditional message to us to take back?

Mr. NELSON. My message would be, we are fortunate, in the City
of Olympia, that we have tremendous support from our communi-
ty, the police department, and we are prioritizing this. What I look
to are some of the other, smaller jurisdictions that just do not have
those resources. They have got to get involved and do what they
can.

The last words I leave with my kids in eighth grade, when they
graduate is, 20 years from now, after we have won the war on
drugs and your kids ask you, "what did you do in the war on
drugs?" my thought is: "I did a lot." And, I ask my kids to say,
"you can do a lot by not taking drugs." I think DARE is the most
effective way to get there. So, I would say it is really critical at this
time.

Colonel PARTIN. The war on drugs is supposed to be one house-
hold at a time, one student at a time. We can also look at it as a
school at a time and the DARE officers. I mentioned it at the be-
ginning, but I really do believe it is one of the most cost effective
ways to fight the war on drugs, and crime and a lot of our social
problems all in one. It is not for everything, but I think it is a good
direction to go.

Sergeant KESSEL. That would be my biggest message too, that ev-
erything is here that we need. As I said, it is all together; it is
ready to go. We need help with the funding. It is really unfortu-
nate that only one third of the children who should be getting
DARE are getting it.

Ms. UNSOELD. I would like to thank Commander Mitchell, and all
of the other members of the DARE community that have helped
make this possible today. We will make use of what you have given
us. And, thank you for not only what you are doing on a daily
basis, but what you have done here to help us help you more in the
future. Thanks a lot, all of you.

[Whereupon, at 11:15 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]

I rl
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Office of Justice Programs
13tireass al hairs Assizame

Moe of the Director Rhshingron, ac 20531

as plasma to mart to you allusfitatIon_talczdiatZtEZL_Majjang
BiaistaamItuatico. The DARE program provides law enforcement and teschers
with an exciting approadh for working together to prevent drug um among
school children. DARE is a positive program through whidh uniformed police
officers !Unction as classroom instzuctors to deliver a 17 pert curriculum to
elementary and middle school students. This samsater-long effort equips
students with druq Information, methods to enhance self-estesm, 'pacific
analytical and docision-meking skills And the activation to employ the skills
learned.

Through our efforts to aid state and local units of government in their fight
against drug abuse, we have received meny requests for aesiatanoe in developing
programs to help cur youth resist pressure to experiment with druge. Inmammy to them requests, the Bureau of JUstice Assistance selected the DARE
program for demonstration.

This program, %Stich was originally developed and found to be very mcomsful in
Los Angeles, has been tested by the Bureau in a nueber of cities thrtughout the
country. It has been greeted with enthumiamm both by law mforoment and
sdhool personnel. Locally and nationally funded evaluations have found
positive results among students participatin; in the MARE program. Interest In
the progrem haa spread throughout the country, and represeritetives from over
300 police departments have received extensive training. A number of states
aro imlarantirq DARE and DARE-like programs with funds available under the
Justice Assistance Act.

The growing interest in CARE, the comprehensive nature of the program and the
complexities inherent in joint action by social systems as different as
enforcement and edUcation, led the Buresu of JUstice Assistance to conclude
that a "blueprint" fur the program was essential. This "Invitation" is the
firet step in offering that "blueprint" and will provide you with theinforntian you need to decide whether your amentity La prepared to commit the
tins, energy and remota-or required to *lament this prtgrea. A detailed
implementation guide is available for those comunitites which decide to
implement DARE.

DARE provides a unique cpcortmity for law anfrecierant and the sdhools to work
together to reduce drug abuse. It also offers law enforcers:Int an effective
means for positive influence an the lives of our youth. I hope that you will
accept this Invite to Project CARE and swept the challenge of helping our
chil to say no S. drugs.
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Preac
In nevem to the minting oationsl concern about
the use of dnegs by Americao youth, the Bum, al
Justice Assistance tties funded ths *Alcmene of this
publication en inthrm lel =forcemeat officers, Dimon,
government officials, sad other ccocarned citizens
alm Project DARE, est tacking approach to prewating
subsea= um Imes school children.

Project DARE (Dnsg. Abuse Resistance Educatios) is
a submit= use preventioa education provem designed
es equip elementary school children with skills for
resiselng peer pressure to experiment with tobacco,
drugs, and alcohol. This unique program, which was
developed in 1943 as a coopentive effon by the
Los Angeles Police Departmeoland the Los Angeles
Unified School District, tun uniformed lee Worm=
taken to mach a formal curriculum to uudenes in a
claaaroom setting. Project DARE gives special attention
to fifth- and siath-gredes to paper* students for entry
inso junior high aad high school, where they are
most llly m mecum pressures to use dntp.

DARE leseees focus cm four major art .1:

Providing accuram informaeion about tobacco,
alcohol, and drugs

teaching students decision-making skills

showing students how to mist peer pressure

giving students ideas for alternatives to drug use

This innovative program has several ooteworthy
honor:

DARE Mrpa eleramtary school chlidna. Junior
high and high school drug education programs hove
come soo lam es prevent drug use &moos youth in
the pain. Therefore, substantial number' of young
people have reporied initiming use a:alcohol, mbacco,
and tearijuans by junior high school!

WE offer a highly amassed, batman mak-
able, developed by health education specialises. A
basic precept of the MAE pogrom is that elementary
school children lack sufficient social skills to must
peer pressure and say oo to &up. DARE inanition
do not use the scare tactics of traditional approaches

that focus on the dangers of drug use. Inuead,
the instructors work with child= to raise their
mif-esesem, to teed them how to make decisions
oe their own, and to help them identify positive
alternatives io tobacco, &Mabel, and drug use. The
curriculum skInsses learning objectives in keeping
with those of seam departments of education and
conforms with health education standards.

DUE etas uniformed law euforcestseas officers
to coasted the dau. Uniformed officers as DARE
instructors not only serve as role mcdels for children
at an impressionable wge, but also have high credibility
on the subject of drug uae. Moreover, by relating

midgets in a role other than thet cflaee enthroment,
officers develop a rapport that promotes positive
attitudes toward the police and greater respect for
the law.

DUE represent s a long-kron solution so a problem
that has datioped over way years. Many people
believe thee, over time, a change in public attitudes
will reduce dm demand for &up. DARE seek; to
promose that change. Equally important, DARE
instrueton help children develop mature decision-
making capabilities that they can apply to a variety
of situations as they vow up.

For those intereseed in learning how to bring this
novel program to their community, the Bureau of
Justice Assistance has also published Implementing
Project DARE: Drug Abuse ftnistance &deco:ion, se
implementation manual which provides a step-by-step
descriptioo of how to implement Project DARE as
well as model forms and other materials.

The manual is availeble from:

Dorothy L. Everett
Bureau of Justice Assimance
633 Indiana Avenue, NW.
Washingtoe, D.C. 20531
(202) 272-4604

Jamas. PM. O'Malley, LW LG. Bactonm. DrUf Use
Anal Anwricao MO School Sodom. College SitiderO3.
Ooktr Neu Make: Motioned Nos& Throw* 1 9 11 (Itcckvtlle,
Md. Naboml IONA 011 Drug Owe, 19116).
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An invitation to Project Dare:
Drug Abuse Resistance Education
America has a drug problem.

It is a ploblesn that exacts an enormous toll in
human suffering, in the expendinue of public monies,
and, mote importantly, in the enormous waste 0:
human potential.

It is a festering problem whose solution has so far
eluded us.

Despite urgent warninp from parents, educators, and
the mass media, many of our nation's you.ig people
experimem with and use a variety of harmful substances,
including tobacco, drugs, and alcohol) An annual
survey of high school seniors conducted for the National
Institute on Drug Abuse found that, ,n 1985, only
8 percent of students had never used alcohol, and only
31 percent had never smoked cigarettes. Over two thirds
of those semon reported use of at least one illicit
substance, with over one half (54%) having used
marijuana.' Children as rung as age 9 report that
marijuana is "easy to get."

Until recently, Isw enforcement waives het focused
on the supply side of the drug problem, with millions
of dollars spent each year to control the distribution
and sale of illicit drugs. Despite the confiscation of
tons of narcotics, and despite thousands of arrests,
the drug trade continues to flourish.

Law enforcement experts now recognize that the
problem of substance um must be addressed by
strillMing demand, especially among young people
who might become tommorrow's drug users. A recent
report issued by the Commission on Organized Come
concludes that the only way to significantly reduce
the &us moblem in the United States is thniugh
eliminaties the demsnd for drugs.'

School children must be educated to recognize the
dangers of drug use and to resist both the subtle and
the &net pressures on them to experiment with and
use drugs.

Arresting Demand: The
Development of Project DARE
In 1963, Chief Daryl Gases of the Los Angeles Police
Deperanent (LAPD) recognized that, to peevent substance
use among children, he would need the cooperation
of the Los Angeles Unifitel School District (LAUSD).

Under Chief Gate's direction. th; LAPD collaborated
with Dr. Harry Handler, Superintendent of LAUSD,
to lunch a drug uae prevention education program
that employs law enforcement officers in elementary
classrooms as regular instructors.

A review of existing substance use curncula by
Dr. Ruth Rich, a health education specialist from
LAUSD, showed that lessons concentrating on techniques
for resisting peer pressure, on self-mansgement skills
(decision making, values clarification, and problem
solving), and on alternatives to dnig use appeared to
have the greatest degree of success. These methods
were incorporated into the DARE curriculum, challenging
students to consider the consequences of their actions
and involving them in classroom exercises that give
them the owortunity to practice what they hod learned.'

During Project DARE's first year. 1983-84. tea officers
taught the new curriculum to more than 8,000 students
in 50 Los Angeles elementary schools. Subsequently,
the DARE program, which originally targeted senior-
level elementary students (fifth- or sixth-grades), was
expanded to include a junior high curriculum and
lessons for grades K-4. By 1986, the program had
grown to reach all 345 elementary and 58 junior high
schools in the city.

Based 011 this Wean. Chief Gates invited other
jurisdictions to send officers to Los Angeles for 80 hours
of intensive DARE training. Officers from 33 states
representing 398 agencies have now learned how to
bnng the DARE curriculum to the children in their
communities. Because the graving demand for DARE
mining exceeds the LAPErs capacity, the Bureau of
Justice Assistance plans to fund the esmblishment of
up to three DARE regioul training centers in 1988.

The excitement about Project DARE continues to grow.
In October 1986, the Bureau of Justice Assistance awarded
grants to seven jurisdictions for planning and organizing
DARE implementation. The Deportment of Defense
plans to establish DARE in all of its schools for military
dependents. New Zealand plans to implement DARE
ut usociatme with its lam-related education progrem.
Csther countries, including England and Australia, are
inveoigating the introduction of Project DARE in their
schools u well.

There re now a Spanish version end a Braille translation
of the student workbook used in the classroom. Efforts
art in der way to develop strategics for teaching DARE
to he umg-impaired and other special needs students.

14
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Program Goals and Objectives
Goal:

lb prevent substance use among school children.'

The DARE program targets children before they are
lihely to have ban led by their peers to experiment
with tobacco, &up, and alcohoL By reaching children
at a age when hay tee most receptive to drug prevention
education, Project DARE seeks to invent adolescent
drug use and to reduce drug trafficking by eliminsung
the demand for drugs.

Objectives:

lb equip elementary and junior high rtudents with
6e allls kr recognizing and resisting social pressures
to aperinuot with alcohol, tobacco, and drugs

lb help nucleon develop self-esteern

lb teach positive alternatives to subetance use

lb develop students' skills in risk usessroent and
decision making

lb build students' iluerpersonal and communications

Project DARE achieves these objectives by training
carefully selected veteran law enforcement officers to
teach a structured, sequential curriculum in the schools.

An important by-product of Project DARE is the
positive impact of uniformed law enforcement officers,
working in cisurooms in a cAithreatemng, preventive
role, upon the image of law enforcement in the
community.

A Program That Works:
Evaluation Results
Evolutions al Project DARE in la Angeles reveal
greet enthusiasm kr the prop= anima school principals
and sachem who say that DARE students are leu

ccepting of eubstence use and bear prepared to
deal with peer pressure u a result al the DARE lessons.
Moravia, theee educators find that, because DARE
studies got to know police officers in a positive,
Donpunkive role, they have a greater nano for both
the lin and km ankrooment personal.' Bernd that,
students receiving the DARE curriculum in elementary
school show greater improvement, compared with
noe-DARE students, in grades for work habits and
cooperation during their first semester in junior high.'

2

A Mon iam evaluation for the Notional Institute al
/twice also demoostrates the impact al Projeo DARE
on the kmowiedge, attitudes, end self-reponsd behavior
al seventh-grade students who received DARE in the
sixth grade)" These axioms, compered with those
wbo hod not had DARE, indkaal significantly lower
substance use since graduation from the sixth grade.
Moreover, DARE students, when asked to imagine
friends pressuring them tn use drugs or alcohol, were
significantly leu likely to indicate acceptance al the
offer than were non-DARE 'Wenn. DARE students
were also more likely to use effective refusal mares
emphasized by the DARE curriculum.

ln 1985, Los Angeles initiated a seven-year study of
DARE and noo-DARE students to aueu the long-term
impact al the program on students' knowledge, attitudes,
and self-reponed drug use.

Key Program Elements
To implement DARE effectively, specific elements
are essential:"

Joint Planning

DARE req.,res the investment and collaboration of
both law enforcement and education agencies. The
initiative may be taken by either agency or by a third
party, such as the mayor's office or a parents group
However, both education and law enforcement agencies
must be involved early in planning for implementation.
Many issues are likely to arise during the planning
period:

MU schoe/ and police asinsinistrators hart d(Oiculty
worhing together? Schools and police have different
administrative styles and am not ccoiroonly accustomed
to working together. Communities find, however. that
a structured program and a mutual commitment to
preventing substance use among rung people ccovide
stroog motivaion kr pursuing this cooperative effort.

Wil/ there be relitiltnce in the edultiii011 community
ta kw enforcement presence in the classroom?
Police officers are usually viewed u law enforcers,
not as teachers. However, DARE officers ate all-
trsined, committed individuals who quickly prow
their effectiveness as classroom teachers. When
teachers and administrators observe individual
officers instruntine iodividual classrooms,
resistance evaporates.

Art there miser school-bared programs currindy
in um or being introduced to combat adolescent
bag use? A long-standing coocern about substance
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tee has gemmed many approschns to reventioa
educeloa. School systems must choose amoag
may certitude end anomie their limbed meows.
eflactively. Other Mummy or Width specialists
easy be comesised to mother appmech sod may
nee recognize bow DARE can fit into the gal
health educates program. lb meet these tern:nee
concern, primmest' of competing propane should
be invited to whelps* ia the *mine mass. In
Mainchusenz, team* where a strong commis
Re teacher-led instruction had emerged, IMRE came
to be viewed as one compooent of a comprehensive,
multicurriculum health educatioe musgy.

New oat Projoet 114.1U !jilt two we already fail
dueness sehMalet Schools are concerned that tbe
teaching of leak skills may be neglected as the
demands increase to address other topics of social
concern. The DARE curricuhim, which was developed
by health education specialists, is multifaceted,
ramhatizing bale skills that students must learn
m make reamed choices anr good health. Moreover,
DARE iecorporees the applicauon of languege
arts into many of its lessons. Some programa have
identified ways in which the DARE curnculum
mem learning objectives established by the Sole
Department of &beaten.

can du law oforctottot tleparotterti afford to
foam* offiters to dam-am &ay? Each veteran
office on petrol is important in the fight agauut
crime. Adminiztreors, therefore, need to decide
whether assigning an officer to Project DARE is
worth the cost af a reduced presence on the street.
Law enforcement administrators in nearly 400
jurisdictions, hiving recognized the limitations of
past approaches to our nationa drug ptoblens, have
determined the it is.

One officer instructor can serve as many az ten
elementary schools or up to 40 classes per year.
Comequanky, small law enforcement depanmentt,
which may have special concerns about the time
required fix DARE implementation. will find that
am officer can work pan-time as a DARE instructor
with the balance of the officer's ume being devoted
to other departmental activities.

Written Agreement

Implementation of DARE requires a partnership
between law ea:In:smug and education systems.
A written agreement between law enforcement and
school officials demonstrate' eech agency's commitment
to Project DARE Lod defines their respective roles.
MO !agreement generally includes:

A easement of their mutual canmitmait to implement
DARE u a strategy to prevent substance use
mom children

The law enforcement role: to assign in a non-law
enfeartment role qualified officen who will teach
the DARE curriculum in the schools

Tbe school role: to provide clamp= time for
lesson', coordinate acheduling, and merge leathers
to support and minions ciassmom activities

Pmgram scope: the grade(s) to be targeted anti the
number al schools and students to be reached

a Specification ot the sgency responsible for rending
such resources u student workboolo and films

Sucification of the agency responsible for program
oversieht

Procedures for regular communication between the
two agencies

Officer Selection

The high quality of the officer instructors is the keystone
of the DARE prcgram. Officers DMA stilunteer for the
program on the besia af a solid commitment to
preventing substance use among young emple and
must hue a clean record, a minimum of two years
street experience, maturity, and good communication
and organizational skills.

The officers should be from the local community,
where they will be seen and recognized by students.
However, when communities are small or do not have
tasources to assign a local officer, state police or shenffs'
deputies can teach the program. As noted above. this
commitment may be part-time.

The selection process ruefully involves posting of
the poson, preliminary screening, and a forme'
Merriest by a review penal that can include both
police and school personnel. During dam interviews,
DARE candidate hemently meal skills end emetic=
that have lain dorment, yet qualify them for this unique
challenge. School panelists have often commented on
how instructive participeioe in officer selectim has
been in eliminating their misconceptions about police
capabilities.

Officer 11-aining

Training for DARE officers comes of an intensive
teo-week (SO-hour) seminar jointly Ptesented bY law
enforcement and education egenciee. Several states
now offer DARE officer training, using a format

3
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developed and cenifiei by the Los Angeles Police
Depanment. Tb minute the integrity of the DARE
penmen, it is essential the offs= be trained by
certified agencies.°

The DARE training currictdum includes:

An overview of curtail drug use prevention activities

Communication and public speaking skills

Learning methodology and classroom behavior
management

Schoolipolioe relationships

Poke/perm community mlationnips

Stages a adolescent chemical dependency

Audiovisual techniques and other Inching aids

Progrem adnuniuration

Sources of supplementary funding

The most important component a the training is the
modeling a each lesson by experienced DARE officers
(or "moon"). Each trainee then prepare{ led teaches
one keine to fellow trainees, wbo play the role of
filth. or sixth-graders, and who subeequently evaluate
the officer's performance. Mentors advise and support
trainees throughout the training, by helping them prepore
for pmentations and offering suggestions for
improvement.

Training sites also provide orientation sessions for
lew enfoecement and education administrators. Theie
sessions provide an opportunity for managers to
discuss organizational issues anociated with DARE
implementation and to review forms and systems for
monitoring and record-keeping.

Core Curriculum

The DARE core curriculum targets flfth- and sixth-
grade elesuentary school suntan who will be graduating
into junior high at the end of the year. The curriculum
consists of teenage 45- to 60-mintee lesson to be
conducted by the DARE officer oe a weekly basis.
The lessons are structured, sequential, and cumulative.
They employ a wide range of teaching strategies that
emphasize student participedon, including question-
and-answer, group discussion, and role-play activities.

The curriculum is designed to equip students with
skills for recognizing and reeisting peer influences
and other immures to experhnent with subsumes. In
addition to building refusal skills, the lessons focus

on the development of self-esteem, riak interment
and decision-making skills, inn:personal and
communicatioe skills, critical thinking, and the
identificatioo of positive alternatives to substance use.
A listing of the 17 DARE lemons appears at
Appendix C: Page 9.

The DARE curriculum is available only to those
officers wbo have completed certified training.

Classroom Instruction

Typically, officers are assigned to each school for a
full day. Thus, on officer can serve up to five schools
per week per semeuer, or ten schools ut a mo-semester
school year.

Officers are to be regarded as members of the school
faculty. This means that, while at the school as
DARE instructors, they can be called upon to act in
a law enforcement role only in an emergency. It is
recommended that pan-time DARE officers be assigned
to units such as community services in order to avoid
Imv enforcement duties that may conflict with the
DARE image or result in court dates that could interfere
with clauroom obligations,

Informal Officer/Student Interaction

In addition to their formal classroom teaching, DARE
officer: spend ume on the pleyground, in the cafetena.
and at student assemblies to interact with students
informally. They may organize a soccer match, play
basketball, or chat with students over lunch. In this
stay students have an opportunity to become acquainted
with the officer as a trusted friend who is interested
in their happiness and welfare. Students occasionally
tell tbe officer about problems such as abuse, neglect,
alcoholic parents, or relatives who use drugs. The
office: riders these cases to the school principal or to
appropriau resourcee in the community.

Teacher Orientation

The officer needs the support and understanding of
classroom teachers to function effectively m the
classroom. The DARE officer provides an in-service
onentanon for teachers at the beginning of the school
year to familiarize them with the DARE cumculum,

neon din hew developod thia trlinirg capray uiclude Mum.
Moor. Matuichuattn. North Carolina, Virginia. and 'Ohulungion.
Virginia provides its &Ikon with 120 bowl of allsIMI to oder
ID ow* than as cLuarooth trotnleinn
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captain their respective miss, and idnitify wen they
can mown ii afbctively coommusicating DARE',
objemine so die suidons.

Classreom teachers are expected to stay in the classroom
during Ise DARE ineauction. Because they know the
tudeses well, Ambers can share with the officers
wen to handle classroom behevior. Frequently they
assist with owning role-play nercises, nein that
'Wens monde their housework, or providing lessons
during the week vi reinfoce the DARE officer's inching.
Tb encourage such involvement, the curriculum contains
extended activities diet teachers may choose to inuoduce.

Parent Education Evening

The cooperatiin and understanding of parents are
essential to any substance use prevention effort. During
the semester, parents are invited to an evening session
at which the DARE officer =Olin the DARE program.
describes ways to improve fanuly communications and
is recognize and respond to symptoms of substance
use in their children, and provides information about
evadable counseling resources. Some communities
report that enthusiastic parents have organized killow-up
informstional drug prevention saivities as a result of
these DARE officer-led parent education eveninp.

Community Presentations

Police. educators, and others committed to the success
of this effort need to ensure that the program is visible
and widely accepted. Meeting with groups representing
all segments of the community, including parents and
civic groups. community.based organizations, housing
projects, and local businesses, promotes the level of
community undemanding and support that is essential
foe DARE's successful implernentatioe.

Community support may alio help to ensure program
continuity if a scarcity of resources threatens to ineerropt
progmm activities. Community service organizations
frequently supplement program resources by paying
for student workbooks or by providing student Tshirts.
bumper stickers, or other promotional materials that
demonstrate the community's commitment to substance
use prevenuon. This kind of support reinforces for
students the importance of saying no to drugs.

DARE Enrichment Activities
DARE's developers have created several activities to
supplement the core cumculum for grades 5 or 6.

E.-4 VIShad011 LAMM
lypically, as officer can teach up to four fifth- or
sixth-grade classes per day. As time permits, die
officer can visit each °him lower grades to introduce
the students to the DARE concept. A K-4 curriculum
is available for this purpose. The lanais, each
15-20 minutes long. cover such topics as personal
sakty, obeying of laws, and helpful and harmful
urea of medicines and drup.

Jagger High Currkelen
A ten-seesion junior high cufficulum, which targets
grade 7, has been developed to reinforce the Mums
of the elementary level cuniculum. lb accommodate
an already crowded classroom schedule, these session
are usually mught during the health education block
of instruction. In Los Angeles, DARE officers alio
visit pans 8 and 9. They use timely nentsweh
as the deem of Len Biasio din= drugs and their
iminct and to review critical-thinking and decision-
making skills. The DARE oftker assigned lo the
junior high school works clonly wilt the school
counseling staff oe a variety of activities These
include not only formal classroom teaching, but
also taking pan in individual and group discussions
with students considered "at risk," superv Mum
sports or drill teams, sad organizing contests and
special assemblies.

Modified Curriculums
Communities do not slaws have the irsourcel
establish DARE in every elementary schwi. To
respond to requesti for a DARE education program
in pnvate and parochial schools riot receiving the
full curriculum, Los Angeles has developed an
abbreviated program. This program includes a morning
assembly for groups of students from grades 5 to 8.
with follow-up visits to individual classrooms after
lunch (reaching students at all these grade levels
may requue several days). Parent evenings are offered
to these schools as

What Are The Costs
and Who Will Pay?
Personnel

One fill-tione kw enforcement officer for every
ten elementary schools. The cost of reassigning a
in enforcement officer is generally borne by the
law enforcement agency. In some communities, the
school department pays the officer's salary or shares
the cost with the lew enbrcement epoxy.

Program coordinator. Unless a program is very large,
the mordinstor generally holds another position, such
as school health education coordinator or police
community relations officer.

5
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Other Casts

(Wiser mainlag. While the Los Angeles Police
Department haa provided training to the majority
of DARE officers, several stales lune also ci.veioped
training capacities. This traintno is generally offered
at no charge. but communities sending officers must
psy travel, lodging, and meal costs, which may be
paid from school or law enfoteement budgets. In
some woununities, service cluhe underwrite the cost.

al LURE curriculum. The curriculum supplie:i by
the Los Angeles Unified School District is only
released to communities with officers who have
been trained to teach DARE. The cuniculum is
supplied either free or at a nominal charge.

DARE woe*book. A workbook, approximately 33
pages long, must be printed for each student who
participates in the core lifthisiath-grade curriculum.
Depending cm the quality of the cow and the number
of copies produced, costs ranee from SI to $6 per
student. The cover art pnnting costs can be paid
by the school deperonent, the law enforcement
agency, a local service orpruzation, or a bank or
other local business.

Ross. The film Drugs and *or Amazing Mind is
used for the lesson introducing students to the
impect of harmful substances. The film Sons and
DaugluersDrugs and Roost is shown at the parent
education evening. Total cost for both films is
approximately $900. lb reduce cost, films may be
shared by commumties or borrowed from local
film libraries.

These films may be paid for by the Law enforcement
agency, the schcol department, or a local private
funding source, such an a service orpniesnoa,
bank, or other business.

Handstais. Officers need to phoiccopy handouts
for students, for teacher orientation, and foe patent
meetinp. DARE officers generally use phosocopying
machines at the school or in their own meaty.

Classroom suppiles. Omuta= presentations are
frequently more interesting to students when there
are visual displays. Many DARE officen make

paters or transparencies for selected lessons.
Supplies may be provided by school departments
or donated by local school suppliers.

Promotional materials. The distribution of brochures.
T-shins. buttons, or bumper stickers enhances support
for any program. In many communitio, service
organizations willingly donate these kinds of items.

Money fori DARE activities hos come from many
different sources. Because substance use prevention
education for young people is a high pnonty in many
communities, local revenues are often allocated to
cover personnel and supplies. In some local jurisdictions
funds from the sale of confisca..ed drug property have
been appropnated.

Information about other possiblo funding SOkLICCIS is
widely available. Notices regardiog the avtilability of
federal funding appear in the federal Register and
Comnserce Business Doily, which can be obtained at
regional federal offices and some libreries. To subscribe.
contact the Superintendent of Documents, Government
Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402-9731,
telephone (202) 783-323&

State funding may be available through State Departments
of Health and Human Services, Public Safety, or
Educauon, or Justice Assistance Act block programs.
Many states publish funding notices similar to those
available at the federal level.

Information about private foundations and corporate
giving progroms is available from the Foundation
Center through a national network of library reference
collections. To find out about the nearest collectioe,
call (800) 424-9836 toll-free.

DARE AMERICA is a national oonprofit corporatioe
established to create nationwide eaveness of the DARE
program and its effectiveness. It coordinate* a national
funding camption to supply primed educationtl materials,
notebooks, films. and other teaching aids to law
enforcement agencies interested in establishing DARE.
For MIT information, contact Sergeant Jeny Scott,
(213) 485-327'7.

'1ST COPY AVAILABLE
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Appendix A
Sources of Further information
Bureau of Justke Assistance/
MRE Program Manager
Dorothy L. Everett
Burtsu al Justice Assistance
633 Indiana Avenue, N.W.
Wuhington, D.C. 20531
(202) 272-4604

1.041 Angeles Police Department/
TARE Coordinator
Lieutenant Rodger Coombs
Los Angeles Police Depsrunent
Juvenile DivisionDARE
150 North Los Angeles Street
Iris Angeles, CA 90012
(213) 485-4856

State Coordinated DARE Programs
Timothy Da Rosa, Chief
Strategic Development Bureau
Division of Administration
Illinois State Police
201 East Adams Street. Suite 300
Springfield. IL 62707
(217) 782-5227

Lieutenant Wayne Garrett
Project DARE
Virginia State Police Department
Box 27472
Richmond. VA 23261-7472
(8N) 323-2059

Eva Marx
Project DARE
Education Development Center. Inc
55 Chapel Street
Newton. MA 02160
(617) 969-7100

Captain John Pope
Project DARE Coordinator
3110 North 19th Avenue, Suite 290
Phoenix, AZ 115015
(602) 262-8111/262-8118

City DARE Programs

Setrant Daniel Boyle
Project DARE
Syracuse Police Department
511 South State Street
Syracuse, NY 13202
(315) 425-6169

Officer Karl Geib
Project DARE
Portland Police Department
109 Middle Street
Portland, ME 04101
(207) 775-6361

Detective Robert Tinker
Project DARE
Boston Police Academy
85 Williams Avenue
Hyde Park, MA 02136
(617) 247-4410/247-4625

Sergeant Mary Thrnlin
Project DARE
Huntsville Police Department
P.O. Box 2085
Huntsville, AL 35801
(205) 532-7254

34 660 30
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Appendix B
Publications
Delay, W., "A Short-Tenn Evaluation ot Project

DOE (Drug Abuse Actinium Educatint):
Preliminary Indications ct Effectiveness." Journal
o I Drug Edocation (in preu).

Arressing the Demand ,for Drugs: Police
and School flinnershIps so Prowler Drug
Abuse. Waahingtoo, D.C.: National Instinue of
Munn, 1917.

"Project DARE: Thaching Kids to Soy No to
Drugs and Alcohol." NI! &pont, March 1956,
pp. 2-5.

Gres, Daryl F. "Educators + Police DARE."
NJASA hrspectire. no. 4 (Spring 9E7): 7

"Dnig Abuse Resistance Education." The &rice
'Dud, October 1986

-LAPD's Project DARE." School Svirry. Spring
1956, pp. 26-27.

"DARE Program." California Fraternal Order of
Iblice Jountal. 6, no. 2 (Spring 1985): 47-53.

U.S. Department of Education. What librks: Schools
Without Drugs. Wuhingtoo, D.C.: U.S. Department
et Education, 1986. Describes model appeoaches to
drug abuse prevention, including DARE, and contains
an extensive list et publications. Available free of
charge by calling (500) 624-0100 or writing Schools
Without Dnigs, Pueblo, CO 81009.

Contact also:

Office of Substance Abuse Prevenuon
U.S. Department of Health and

Human Services
Puklawn Building
5600 Fishers UDC
Rockville, MD 20852
(301) 443-0165
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Appendix C
DARE Lessons
The DARE curriculum is otpnized into seventeen
classroom sessions conducted by the police officer,
occupied with warned activities taught by the regular
classroom teacher. A wide range of teaching activities
are usedquestioa-and-wwes, group discussion,
role-play, and workbook exercises, all designed to
encourage student participatioe and response,

The following brief summaries of each lesson capture
the scope of the DARE curriculum and show the care
taken in its pteparadon. All of these lessons were
pilot mud sad revised before widespread Lite began.

1. Practices for Personal Safety. The DARE officer
reviews common safety practices to protect students
from harm at home, on the way to and from school.
and in the neighborhood.

2. Deng Use and Misuse. Students learn the harmful
effects of drugs if they are misused as deposed in
du film, Drugs and Ibur Amavng Mind.

3. Consequencet. The focus is on the consequences
of using and not using alcohol and marijuana. If
students are await of those consequences. they can
make better informed decisions regarding their
own behavior.

4. Resisting Pressures to Use Drugs The DARE
officer explains different types of pressureranging
from friendly persuasion and teasing to threats
that friends and others can exert on students to
try tobacco, alcohol, or drugs.

5. Resistance Tinkniques: Nays to Say No. Students
rehearse the many ways of mfusing offers to try
tobacco, alcohol, or drugssimply saying no and
repeating it as often as necessary; changing the
subject: walking awry or ignoring the person.
They learn that they can avoid situations in which
they might be subjected to such ptessures and
can "hang around" with non-users.

6. Building Self-Esteem. Poor self-esteem is one of
the factors associated with drug misuse. How
students feel about themselves results from positive
and negative feelings and experiences. In this
session students learn about Mei. own positive
qualities and how to compliment other students.

7. Assertiveness: A Respoate Style Students have
certain rightsto be themselves, to say what they

think, to say no to offers of drugs. The session
teaches them to LUert those rights confidently
and without interfering with others' rights.

L Managing Sew Without Biking Drugs. Students
learn to recognize sources of stress in their lives
and techniques for avoiding or relieving stress.
including exercise, deep breathing, and talking to
others. They learn that using drugs or alcohol to
relieve stress causes oew problems.

9. Media Influences at Drug Use. The DARE
officer reviews strategies used in the media to
encoutage tobacco and alcohol use. including
testimonials from celebrities and social pressure.

10. Decision-Making and Risk-Taking. Studeno learn the
difference between bad risks and responsible risks.
how to recognize the choices they have, and how to
maks a decision that promotes their self-interesu.

U. Alternatives to Drug Abuse. Students learn that to
have fun, to be accepted by peers. or to deal with
feelings of anger or hurt, there are a number of
alternatives to using drugs and alcohol.

12. Role Modeling. A high school student selected
by the DARE officer visits the class. providing
students with a positive role model. Students learn
that drug users are in the minority.

13. Forming a Support System. Students learn that
they need to develop positive relationships with
many different people to form a support system.

14. %yr to Dee/ with Pressures front Gangs
Students discuss the kinds of pressures they way
encounter from gang members and evaluate the
consequences of the choices available to them.

15. Project DARE Summary. Students summarize
and assess what they have learned.

6. Taking a Stand. Students compose and read aloud
essays on how they can respond when they are
pressured to use drugs and alcohol. The essay
represents each student's "DARE pledge."

17 Culmination In a schoolwide assembly planned in
concert with school administrators, all students
who have participated in Project DARE receive
certificates of achievement.

9
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the Evaluation Training Institute in LAS Angeles
and written by O.F. Nyre: (1) An Evaluarton of
Prvject EWRE (1984), (2) Final Ewiluanon
Report, 1984-1985: Project DARE (1985), and (3
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DARE (1986).

9. Nyre. LURE Etalmazion Report (1986).
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of Drug Education (in press).
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Drug Abuse (Washington, D.C. National Institut.
of Justice. 1987).
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Dare to Keep Kids Off Drugs PO Box 20,40
,s Angeles ( A q0051 ONO

800 221 DAM

February, 1990

D.A.R.E. WILL TEACH OVER 4.5 MILLION CHILDREN
DRUG RESISTANCE SKILLS IN 1990

This year, four million school children across the country will learn the skills they need to
resist pressure to take drugs or join gangs, thanks to the highly acclaimed D.A.R.E. (Drug
Abuse Resistance Education) program.

D.A.R.E. is a police officer-led, semester-long series of classroom lessons that teach fifth and
sixth grade children how to resist pressure to experiment with drugs and alcohol. In 1983.
Chief Daryl Gates of the Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD) recognized that, to prevent
substance use among children, he would need the cooperation of the Los Angeles Unified
School District (LAUSD). Under Chief Gates' direction, the LAPD collaborated with LAUSD to
launch a drug use prevention education program that employs law enforcement officers in
elementary classrooms as regular instructors. The D.A.R.E. program has proven so successful
that it has expanded into more than 2,200 communities in 49 states, Australia. New Zealand
American Samoa, Canada and in Department of Defense Schools worldwide.

D.A.R.E America Launched To Meet Demand

The overwhelming national and international demand for the D.A.R.E program led to the
creation of a national non-proht organization, "D.A.R E. AMERICA," in September 1987.
Headquartered in Los Angeles, D.A R.E. AMERICA serves as a resource to communities.
helping them establish and improve local D.A.R E. programs.

D.A.R E. AMERICA supports officer training, coordinates fund-raising and sponsorship
opportunities and regularly monitors instruction standards and program results Nathan
Shapefl, head of California's "Little Hoover" Commission, presides over D A.R.E AMERICA's
Board of Directors. supported by philanthropist Armand Hammer, Virginia Governor Gerald
L Baliles and Diane Disney Miller

D.A.R.E. Training Is Unique

D A.R.E. goes far beyond traditional drug abuse programs Typically, these programs
emphasize drug identification and the harmful effects of drugs and alcohol. They warn
children not to use these substances. but don't teach them how to resist the pressures to try
them. D.A R.E gives children skills to recounize and resist the subtle and overt pressures
that cause them to experiment with drugs and alcohol.

"The D.A R.E. program has become a model that can be exported to other cities." says Daryl F
Gates, Los Angeles Chief of Police "Rather than just offering slogans or organizing ralhes
D A R.E teaches children how to deal with peer pressure It's the only program I know of that
gives children something substantial to use when they're confronted with drugs"

DRUG A BUSE R ESISTANCE EDUCATION
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The D.A.R.E. program includes 80 hours of police officer and teacher training, a semester-long
curriculum and accompanying classroom materials targeting fifth and sixth grade students,
along with pre-program and post-program testing. Separate components have also been
developed for kindergarten, junior high school, and high school students and their parents.

Veteran Cops Assigned Classroom "Beats"

The curriculum for the D.A.R.E. program, developed by LAUSD, was designed to be taught by
officers because fifth and sixth grade students are frequently much more sophisticated about
substance abuse than are classroom teachers. Veteran police officers can answer student
questions based on their training and experience. Prior to entering the D.A.R.E. program, each
officer undergoes 80 hours of special training in areas such as child development, classroom
management, teaching techniques and communication skills.

The officers assigned to D.A.R.E. have come straight from the streets. Their years of
direct experience with the ruined lives and street crimes caused by substance abuse gives
them a credibility unmatched by teachers, movie or television celebrities or professional
athletes.

0.A.R.E. The Program

Many experts in education and medicine believe substance abuse prevention must begin early.
D.A.R.E. targets students when they are most vulnerable to tremendous peer pressure to try
drJgs or alcohol. The 17 lessons help children build their self-esteem, manage stress. foresee
behavioral consequences. resist pro-drug media messages, and identify alternatives to drug
use. It doesn't just tell them to say 'no'; it teaches them how to say 'no'

The primary goal of D.A.R.E. is to prevent substance abuse among school age children.
D.A.R.E. accomplished this goal by:

Providing students with accurate information about alcohol and drugs.
Teaching students ways to say ''NO" to drugs while providing alternatives to drug use;
Teaching students decision making skills and the consequences of their behavior; and
Building students self esteem while teaching them how to resist peer pressure.

The D.A.R.E. Program is divided into four components:
K-4th grade visitations: This acquaints the children with the D.A.R.E. officer and lays the
ground work for the 17 lessons they will receive in 5t11 or 6th grade.
5th/6th grade core classes: This is the foundation of the D.A.R.E. Program. It provides the
students with the skills they will need as young adults to resist the temptations of drug abuse.
Junior Hight These 10 lessons are a follow-up to the original 17 lessons. They reinforce the
values students learned in elementary school.
High School: These 5 lessons take the students into adulthood D A.R.E. combines all the
previously learned values and experiences and applies them to real life situations, teaching
young adults the value of staying drug free.
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Success of Program Documented

D.A.R.E:s success is measured by ongOing evaluation conducted by the Evaluation and Training
Institute (ETI), a Los Angeles-based indLdendent research firm_ A.H. Training and Development
Systems, of Springfield, Illinois, conducts ongoing evaluation for D.A.R.E. in Illinois.

Initial findings from ETI's long-term study, begun in 1985, show that the program has far
exceeded its goal of helping students combat peer pressure to use drugs and alcohol. It also has
contributed to improved study habits and grades, decreased vandalism and gang activity and
has generated greater respect for police officers.

FACT SHEET: D.A.R.E. (DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION)

Founded September 1983

Headquarters Los Angeles. California

Development DARE originated as a cooperativeeflort of the Los Angeles Police Depart-
ment (LAPD) and the Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD).

Development by LAUSD health education specialists Specially trained
veteran police officers teach a course in drug resistance techniques
Lessons focus on CI) providing accurate information at.out alcohol and
drugs. (2) teaching students docision-making skills. (3) showing them how
to resist peer pressure, (4) giving them ideas for alternatives to drug use

Kindergarten through high school

49 states in the U S . the Department of Defense Dependent Schools.
Australia. New Zealand, American Samoa. Canada

Curriculum

Grade Levels Involved

States. Countries
Implementing DARE

Projected Number of
Students to be Reached
in 1990

Number of Lesson Plans

DARE Programs in Place

Materials

Funding

Successes and Results

Expansion

Over 4 5 mullion chtldren in over 100.000 classrooms will receive the core
curnculum In addition, several mdluon more kids will be impacted by the
other components of the D.A.R E Program.

The DARE curriculum has three separate cot»ponents
Elementary - 17 lessons, plus visitations. K-4
Junior High :.10 lessens
High School - 5 lessoAs with 2 follow-up lessons by teacher

2.200 (as of January 1990)

Educational materials. program outlines for schools, student workbooks,
drug awareness information for parents, information pamphlets for citizens
and community groups

LAPD. LAUSD funds, grants from Criminal Justice Planning and Bureau of
Justice Assistance, activities coordinated and managed by D.A R
AMERICA, private and corporate donations. including Kentucky Fried
Chicken and Security Pacific Nntional Bank as national corporate sponsors.

Independent evaluations show students have learned to resist drugs and
combat peer pressure In addition, school vandalism. truancy and gang
activity have decreased Relations betwetrn ethnic groups have improved
Students have developed arpore postlive outlook toward police and school.

.-As
DARE is available Jo 'Communities across the country

r )
4,4
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DARE PROGRAM 5TH/6TH GRADE cuRrucuum

The following outlines the D.A.R.E. curricukim. One lesson is presanted each week throughout a
grade school semester.

1. PERSONAL SAFETY PRACTICE Acquaints students with role of polico and practices for
student safety.

2. DRUG USE AND MISUSE Helps stuclent understand harmful effects of drugs.

3. CONSEQUENCES Helps ,Itudents understand the negative consequences of drug use and
the positive consequences of saying no to drugs.

4 RESISTING PRESSURES TO USE DRUGS Makes students aware of kinds of peer pressor?.
they may face and helps thani learn to say no to offers to use drugs.

5 RESISTANCE TECHNIQUCS WAYS TO SAY NO Taaches students ways to say no in
resisting various types of pressure.

6. BUILDING SELF-ESTEEM Helps students understard that Golf mage results from positive
and negative feelings and experiences.

7. ASSERTIVENESS: A RESPONSE STYLE Teaches Viet assertiveness is a response style that
enables a person to state ;tis or her own rights without losS of self-esteem.

6 MANAGING STRESS WITHOUT TAKING DRUGS -- Helps students recognize stiess and
suggests ways to deal with it other than by taking di'ugs.

9 MEDIA INFLUENCES ON DRUG USE Helps stuoents develop toe usioerstarding and skills
needed to analyze and res;st media presentations about alcohol and drugs.

10 DECISION MAKING AND RISK TAKING Helps students apply the decision-making process
in evaluating the results of various kinds of risk-taking behavioi; iocluding that of drugs.

11 ALTERNATIVES TO DRUG USE Helps students find out about activities that are
interesting and rewarding and are better than taking drugs.

12 ROLE MODELING Oldcr student leaders and other positive role models that do not use
dr is talk to youner students to clarify the misconception that drugs are in the majority.

13 FORMING A SUPPORT SYsTP.M -- Students develop positive relationships with many thfterent
peop:e in order to form a support system.

14 RES1S 1 ING G. tNG PRESSURE -- Helps students idenhly situations in which they may be
pre3sureJ by gangs and evaluate the consequences of the choices available to them

15 DARE SUMMA;IY Helps students summarize and assess what they learned twin the
program.

16. TAKING A STAND Students pre"..ent their own commitment to the cless which helps them
respond effectively when pressured to ut,e drugs.

17 CULMINATION Student graduat.on ham the DA RE pr--.)grain
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DARE LONGITUDINAL EVALUATION ANNUAL REPORT

1987..88

Prepared for

The Chiet of Poke
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July 1988



81

DARE Longitudinal Evaluation Report 1987-11

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Since ita inception in 1983, Project DARE has generated national attention for its
unique approach to drug abuse prevention education. Although DARE has several
components, its primary focus is the delivery of a formal drug resistance curriculum by
uniformed police officers to students in the fifth, sixth, and/or seventh grades,

Developed and administered by the Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD) and the Los
Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD), the goal of the 2.'sRE peogram is to equip
students with the Information and skills they need to resist peer pressure and say
sae to alcohol and drugs. To this end, DARE employs a comprehensive strategy
designed not only to teach facts, but to improve attitudes, enhance self-esteem, and
help students develop their decision-making skills. The semester-long DARE curriculum
is comprised or seventeen weekly lessons at the elementary school level and nine
sessions at the junior high/middle school level. In the Los Angeles Unified School
District, 347 elementary schools and 58 junior high and middle schools located within
LAPD jurisdiction currently receive the DARE program.

The Evaluation and Training Institute (ETI) has been involved in the assessment of
Project DARE since the program was implemented in 1983. Six evaluation reports have
been submitted, each indicating positive changes in the knowledv, sttitudes, and

behavior of students who received the DARE cuniculum.

In July 19115, the Los Angeles Board of Police Commissioners contracted with ETI to
conduct a three-year longitudinal assessment of the DARE program. Though prior
evalllatiolls identified many valuable short-term outcomes, the longitudinal study was
designed to provide a brooder and more vigorous base of evaluation information
concerning the effectiveneu of the DARE curriculum over time.

The following discussion summarizes the activities and outcomes of the third year of
ETI's longitudinal evaluation. A detailed description of the study's methodology and
findings may be found in the full report nf the IS117-88 DARE Longitudinal Evaluatiot..

ACTIVITIES:

ET1 proposed to evaluate the long-term effectiveness of the DARE program by
tracking and surveying a sample of studenu each year from sixth to eighth grade,
comparing the responses of DARE participants on questions of personal drug use,
atthudes, and self-esteem with those of students who did not receive thc DARE
program. Since the analysis of students' personal use of substances relied exclusively
on self-reported data, ET! also proposed to conduct an analysis of school records data
to obtain information on poss;ble intermediate effects of the DARE program. Students'
grades, school attendance records, and reports of disciplinary actions were examined to
determine ir significant differences were evident 1,1 the academic performance and
general behavioral patterns of DARE and non-DARE students. In addition to these
activities, the longitudinal study included a survey of faculty and administrators at all
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junior high schools receiving the DARE program. A supplemental survey was conducted
of seventh-grade DARE and non-DARE students at five cohort schools 1.

METHODOLOGY:

ETI commenced the longitudinal study in Fall 1985 with well-matched samples of 699
experimental and 541 control group students. The experimental group was comprised of
sixth grade students who were scheduled to receive DARE for the first time later that
year (DARE). Sixth-grade students who would not receive DARE comprised the control
group (non-DARE). The study was designed to track and survey these students each
year in the sixth, seventh, and eighth grades. Lacking s formal tracking system,
however, the LAUSD was unable to provide ET! with accurate informstion about where
the sample students would be attending junior high. Consequently, a large percentage
of students were 'lost* during the transition from elementary to junior high school.
High attrition and transience within the District further depleted the original samples.

In response to these problems, ET1 initiated procedures to maintain the samples in both
the second and third years of the study. In 1987-88, this included the implementation
of a random replacement procedure which added 169 additional DARE and non-DARE
students to the longitudinal sample. A detailed description of these activitils may be
found in the full report. Sample sizes for each year of the study are outlined in Table
1.

TABLE 1

SAMPLw SIZES BY YEAR FOR THE LONGITUDINAL SURVEY

School Year DARE Control Total
Students Students Sample

1985-86 699 541 1,240
1986-87 331 236 567
1987-83 498 163 661

1Two cohort groups were integrated into the longitudinal study in Fell 1986
in order to augment the original aample and enable analysis of DARE's long-term
impact by two additional variables: grade level at which students receive the
DARE curriculum, and number of exposures to the DARE program. Students in
the cohort experimental group received the DARE program for the first time in
the seventh grade. Students in Zhe control group will not receive DARE because
they attend schools outside LAPD jurisdiction. The 1987-88 survey was
administered at 5 selected junior high schools in the LAUSD, yielding samples of
549 DARE and 956 non-DARE students. The cohoit study is currently in its
seaond year.
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In 1987, surveys were administered to eighth grade students at 60 junior high and
middle schools in the LAUSD, yielding samples of 498 DARE and 163 non-DARE
student*. The experimental and control groups were then compared on five categories
of survey data: demographic information, student's self-reported use of drugs and
alcohol, knowledge and attitudes r4arding drug and alcohol use, self-concept, and drug
and alcohol use by the respondent's friends, siblings, and other household members.
Two types of data analysis were performed: First, survey responses from the current
year were compared to determine if there were statistically significant differences
between DARE and non-DARE students, particularly on questions concerning students'
personal use of drugs and alcohol. Second, ETI conducted a longitudinal or time-series
analysis of data from all three years of the study to determine: I) whether students'
use of substances showed a decreasing or increasing trend, and 2) whether the trends
exhibited by DARE participants were significantly different from those of non-DARE
students.. The statistical procedures used for analysis are detailed in tbe full report.

In addition tc conducting the student survey, an attempt was made to collect students'
grades and school records dca at all junior high and middle schools included in the
study. The data collected were to be analyzed to determine if differences existed in
the academic performance and general behavioral patterns of DARE and non-DARE
students. As many schools did not have sufficient resources to provide ETI with the
data requested, however, the number of students for whom ETI received completed
records was too small for merningful statistical analysis. In subsequent years, ETI
will provide schools with resources for data collection, and will report the results of
the analysis at that time.

E111122121

The results of the 1917-88 evaluation can be summarized as follows:

o Analysis of the student survey data showed statistically significant
differences between DARE and non-DARE students in reported use of all
categories of alcohol, tobacco, heroin and inhalants. As ehown on the bar
charts presented on the following pages, in all csses of alcohol and drugs
that showed a significant difference, DARE participants showed a lower rate
of use than non-DARE students.

o Where diffetences were not statisticslly significant, numeric differences
showed a repeatedly higher percentage of DARE students reporting no use
of any substances and a consistently lower percentage of DARE students
reporting use at all frequency levels.

3
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Tatn important findings also emerged from the longitudinal analysis:

o Although actual reported use is still considerably lower than that of
control students, DARE participants showed a greater tendency to
increase their level of tobacco use than students in the control group.

o DARE students sho,wed a significantly decreasing rate of cocaine use,
ale while non-DARE students showed a slight increase in use.

o DARE students showed a tendency (not statistically significant) to
experiment less frequently than non-DARE students with drugs such as
LSD, amphetamines (uppers), depressants (downers), heroin, inhalants,
PCP, and drugs not prescribed for them by a doctor.

These findings represent the first time in the five year study period that so many
statistically significant differences in substance use have emerged between the DARE
and control groups. No significant differences were found between DARE and non-
DARE students on questions concerning attitude or self-concept.

Analysis of the data on use of drugs and alcohol by friends, siblings, and others in the
household also showed no significant differences between DARE and non-DARE
students, except in the highest frequency category. This finding indicates that both
groups of students are exposed to similar pressures, opportunities, and examples of
substance abuse. Consequently,

o the significantly lower use of drugs and alcohol by DARE students can not
be considered to be a result of less opportunity or pecr pressure than for
control students, but can clearly bc attributed to participation in the DARE
program.

Finally, the staff survey indicated that principals, counselors, and teachers are
generally very positive about the DARE program.

o In general, most staff members agreed that DARE had increased student
awareness about drug and alcohol use, increased students' willingness to
talk openly about problems related to drugs, and prepared students to resist
peer pressure more effectively.

o Respondents felt that presenting a police officer in a non-threatening
atmosphere, in which he or she could be viewed as a 'real person',
encouraged the students to consider police officers positive role models
instead of adversaries.

o Most faculty members also agreed that DARE Ifficers were effective
teachers and provided a beneficial method of educating students about drugs
and drug resistance.

o Staff members recommended that DARE increase faculty and staff
involvement in the planning and presentation of the curriculum, including
teachers who do not have officers visiting their classroom, and implement a
follow-up program to reinforce what students learn during the DARE
semester.
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